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Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
M/& SWAROJGAR LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD.
BANEPA, RAEHREPALARCHOK.

Disclaimer of Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of M/s Swarojgar Laghubitta Bittiya
SHanstha Ltd., the “D" class Financial Institution, which comprise Statement of Finanecial Position
as at Ashadh 32, 2079 [July 16, 2022) and Statement of Profit or Loss, Statement of Changes in
Equity and Statement of Cash Flow for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the accompanying financial statements of the microfinance
whether the financial statements are [airly presented as per Nepal Financial Reporting
Standards. Because of the significance of the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of
Opinion section of the report, we have not been able to obtain sufficient, appropriate audit
evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these financial statements,

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion

We cenducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Cur
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the audit of the Financial Stalements section of our report. We are independent of the
microfinance in accordance with the ICAN's Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants, and we have fulfilled our other ethical respomnsibilities in accordance with the
ICAN's Handbook of the Code of Ethics for professional Accountants,

As required by the Institute of Chartercd Accountants of Nepal (ICAN), the microfinance
institutions should prepare their financial statements as per Nepal Financial Reporting
Standards (NFRSs] with effect from 2073/04/01 {16 July 2016). However, the microfinance has
not prepared its financial statements in accordance with the NFRSs. The cumulative effective of
nat preparing financial statements in compliance with NFRSs is uncertain and could be material
and pervasive,

Key Audit Matters
Mo other key audit matter has been determined except the matter described in the basis of
disclaimer of opinion paragraph.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the preparation of other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report but does not include the Financial
Statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the Financial Statements do not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Cur responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so, consider whether the Other
Information is materially inconsistent with the Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained
in the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report the fact, We have nothing to report in this regard,

":‘"%w"ﬁ

P.L.R.G. Associates
Chartered Accountonts
mailtoplrg@gmatl cam, +57F-1-4011079, 40110ED, P.O. Box! 5638, New Plaza Marg, Putalisadak, Kathmandu
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Responsibilities of the Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with the NFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management 1s responsible for assessing the
microfinance's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the microfinance or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the microfinance's financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our ohjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resuiting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional cmissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the organization's internal contrel.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on institution’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in cur auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to meodify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future évents or conditions may cause institution to cease to continue

a5 & going concern.
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e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statement,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance, regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
We have determined to communicate following matters in accordance with the requirements of
NRB Directives, Companies Act, 2063, BAFIA,2073 and other regulatory requirements:

e We have obtained all the information and the explanations, which, to the best of our
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

» Based on our audit, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the
microfinance except as mentioned above in respect of NFRSs compliance.

s Statement of Financial Position as at Ashadh 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022) and Statement of
Profit or Loss, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flow for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies dealt with by this report are prepared in accordance with the NRB
Directives and are in agreement with the books of accounts maintained by the
microfinance.

« The microfinance has accounted for interest income on cash basis while preparing the
financial statements in accordance with the NRB Directives.

« The capital fund, risk bearing fund and the provisions for possible impairment of assets
of the microfinance are adequate considering the Directives issued by Nepal Rastra Bank.

« In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations and
from our examination of the books of accounts of the microfinance, we have not come
across any case where the Board of Directors or any office bearer of the microfinance
have acted contrary to the provisions of law, or committed any misappropriation or
caused any loss or damage to the microfinance and violated Directives issued by Nepal
Bastra Bank or acted in a manner, as would jeopardize the interest and security of the
microfinance, its shareholders and its depositors.

« The business of the microfinance has been conducted satisfactorily and operated within
its jurisdiction and has been functioning as per NRB Directives.

B -‘T 2 f :."
F "'.I;JII LH,L;—’/
~Prakash Lamsal, FCA
Senior Partner

P.L.R.G. Associates
Chartered Accountants

Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
Date; 29/09/2079
UDIN: 230113CA001544JdgQ
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e WA o owR
SWAROJGAR LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LIMITED
Unaudited Financial Results (Quarterly)
As at 4th Quarter (32/03/2079) of the Fiscal Year 2078/2079

Rs in '000
S. N. Particular At theQizgt:: hE= Pr:\tlit:L?sEagaor:er Cﬁtr:zzpil:%i%fg
Previous Year Quarter
1. Total Capital and Liabilities 7,877,832.15 8,221,669.65 5,938,649.99
1.1 | Paid up Capital 514,099.12 514,099.12 411,279.30
1.2 | Reserve and Surplus 296,010.08 225,152.58 207,353.45
1.3 | Debentures and Bonds - - -
1.4 | Borrowings 3,501,980.79 4,006,033.41 2,374,280.84
1.5 | Deposits 3,154,844.15 3,068,323.87 2,574,679.20
a. Members 3,154,844.15 3,068,323.87 2,574,679.20
b. Public - - -
1.6 | Income Tax Liability 86,841.42 56,473.91 66,137.67
1.7 | Other Liabilities 324,056.59 351,586.76 304,919.54
2. Total Assets 7,877,832.15 8,221,669.65 5,938,649.99
2.1 | Cash and Bank Balance 234,197.04 266,597.42 185,910.63
2.2 | Money at Call and Short Notice - - -
2.3 | Investments 1,010.00 51,010.00 1,010.00
2.4 | Loan and Advances 7,350,380.09 7,634,440.98 5,567,445.70
a. Rea State Loan - - -
b. Home/Housing Loan - - -
c. Margin Type Loan - - -
d. Term Loan - - -
e. Overdraft Loan/TrLoan/WC Loan - - -
f. Others 7,350,380.09 7,634,440.98 5,567,445.70
2.5 | Fixed Assets 43,267.24 46,093.92 38,177.06
2.6 | Non Banking Assets - — -
2.7 | Other Assets 248,977.78 223,527.33 146,106.60
3. Profit and Loss Account At th%ﬁzgt:rf fhis Pr:\tlit:jsESS:r:er Cﬁtr:zsepir::ii?mfg
Previous Year Quarter
3.1 Interest Income 1,010,324.49 716,649.12 656,914.22
3.2 | Interest Expenses 582,564.39 404,421.70 316,691.71
A. Net Interest Income 427,760.10 312,227.42 340,222.51
3.3 | Fee, Commission and Discount 5,798.01 859.83 3,895.87
3.4 | Other Operating Income 119,946.96 100,573.49 100,948.11
3.5 | Foreign Exchange Gain/Loss (Net) - - -
B. Total Operating Income 553,505.07 413,660.74 445,066.49
3.6 | Staff Expenses 182,725.53 133,738.43 139,519.76
3.7 | Other Operating Expenses 105,633.24 79,179.36 70,623.70
C. Operating Profit Before Provision 265,146.30 200,742.95 234,923.03
3.8 | Provision for Possible Losses 7,917.03 16,047.80 96,906.40
D. Operating Profit 257,229.27 184,695.15 138,016.63
3.9 | Non Operating Income/Expenses (Net) 46,266.41 24,467.49 16,587.90
3.10 | Write Back of Provision for Possible Loss 18,139.19 - 90,349.80
E. Profit from Regular Activities 321,634.87 209,162.65 244,954.34
3.1 Extraordinary Income/Expenses (Net)
F. Profit Before Bonus and Taxes 321,634.87 209,162.65 244,954.34
3.12 | Provision for Staff Bonus 32,163.49 20,916.26 24,495.43
3.13 | Provision for Tax 86,841.42 56,473.91 66,137.67
G. Net Profit/Loss 202,629.97 131,772.47 154,321.23
4. Ratios At the End of This At -the End of At the End of This
Quarter Previous Quarter Quarter
4.1 | Capital Fund to RWA 10.57% 9.36% 10.63%
4.2 | Non Performing Loan (NPL) to Total Loan 2.37% 2.83% 2.63%
4.3 | Total Loan Loss Provision to Total NPL 64.16% 63.92% 87.05%
4.4 | Costof Fund 8.20% 10.01% 7.72%
4.5 | CD Ratio (Calculated as per NRB Directives) 232.99% 248.81% 216.24%
Note : if the statutory audit and supervisory authority notify any remarks to change the unaudited financial statement could change accordingly
Additional Information (Optional)
5. Average Yield (Local Currency) 14.94 14.92 14.93
6. Net Interest Spread (Local Currency) 6.73 4.91 7.21
7. Return on Equity 25.01 23.77 24.95
8. Return on Assets 2.57 2.14 2.60
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AT -¥.R%
Comparision of Unaudited and Audited Financial Statement as of FY 2078/079
Rs in '000
As per As per Variance
S Particular LEI LT o Reason for Variance
No. Financial Financial In Amount In %
Statement Statement
1. Total Capital and Liabilities 7,877,832.15 | 7,685,419.36 | (192,412.79) | (2.44)
1.1 | Paid up Capital 514,099.12 627,200.93 113,101.81 22.00 | Due to proposed bonus share
Due to purpose bonus share, client protection fund
1.2 | Reserve and Surplus 296,010.08 200,491.07 (95,519.02) ((32.27) | and corporate social responsibility fund & Staff
Capacity Enhancement Fund treatment
1.3 | Debentures and Bonds - - - -
1.4 | Borrowings 3,501,980.79 3,501,980.79 - -
1.5 | Deposits 3,154,844.15 | 3,154,844.88 0.73 0.00 | Due to some reconcilation.
a. Domestic Currency 3,154,844.15 3,154,844.88 0.73 0.00
b. Foreign Currency - - - -
1.6 | Income Tax Liability 86,841.42 76,670.84 | (10,170.57) |(11.71) | Income tax liability was decrease due to superviory

instruction.

Proposed cash dividend and interest suspenses
netoff, CSR & CPF Treatment, Reduction on CPF
1.7 | Other Liabilities 324,056.59 124,230.85 (199,825.74) |(61.66) | Investment, Change in Deffered Tax Assets, change
in staff bonus due to change in profit, Refundable
Service charge

2. | Total Assets 7,877,832.15 | 7,685,419.36 | (192,412.79) | (2.44)
21 Cash and Bank Balance 234,197.04 172,919.77 (48,526.04) [(20.72) | Due to reduction on CPF Investment Balance
2.2 | Money at Call and Short Notice - 109,803.31 -
2.3 | Investments 1,010.00 1,000.00 (1000) | (0.99) | Frovision has been made in investment as per NRB
2.4 | Loan and Advances 7.350,380.00 | 7,231,63543 | (118.744.66) | (1.62) | Loan loss provision which was shown in otherliability,

now set off with Loan and advances

a. Real Estate Loan - - - -

b. Home/Housing Loan - - - -

c. Margin Type Loan - - - -

d. Term Loan - - - -
e. Overdraft Loan/TrLoan/WC Loan - - - -
f. Others 7,350,380.00 | 7,231,635.43 | (118,744.66) | (1.62)
25 | Fixed Assets 43.267.24 43,267.24 _ .
2.6 | Non Banking Assets - - - -
2.7 | Other Assets 248,977.78 126,793.61 | (122,184.17) |(49.07) L";gfﬁ;;z%el':a dblife‘r’::: {‘;‘ ggs‘g’;;h interest suspense
3. Profit and Loss Account
3.1 | Interest Income 1,010,324.49 | 1,010,311.13 (13.36) | (0.00) sDt;?f f::r:‘ge in Income heading of Interest income
3.1 | Interest Expenses 582,564.39 582,564.39 - -
A. Net Interest Income 427,76010 | 427,746.74 (13.36) | (0.00)
3.3 | Fee, Commission and Discount 5,798.01 6,278.67 48065 | 829 agirfnrceea"zam” of commission from Reliance Life
3.4 | Other Operating Income 119,946.96 7857861 | (41,368.35) |(34.49) CD#;SZ some reconcilation and refund of service
3.5 | Foreign Exchange Gain/Loss (Net) - - - -
B. Total Operating Income 553,505.07 | 512,604.02 | (40,901.05) | (7.39)
3.6 | Staff Expenses 182,725.53 180,241.68 (2,483.85) | (1.36) | Insurance Expenses of Staff heading change & Staff

capacity Enhancement Fund Treatment
Insurance Expenses of Staff heading change&
3.7 | Other Operating Expenses 105,633.24 107,246.88 1,613.64 1.63 | Treatment of CSR Expenses in other expenses,
Leftover External Audit Expenss

C. Operating Profit Before 26514630 | 225115.45 | (40,030.85) |(15.10)
Provision
3.8 | Provision for Possible Losses 7,917.03 23,837.04 15,920.01 | 20109 | Due tonetling of LLP Expenses ,Write back &
Additional Provision
D. Operating Profit 257,229.27 201,278.41 (55,950.86) |(21.75)
39 Non Operating Income/Expenses 46,266 .41 46,277.54 113 0.02 Due change in Income heading of Interest income
(Net staff loan
310 Wr|te_ Back of Provision for 18,139.19 27.216.77 0,077.58 50.04 Due_ t_o netting gf_ LLP Expenses,Write back &
Possible Loss Additional Provision
E. Profit from Regular Activities 321,634.87 274,772.72 (46,862.15) |(14.57)
Extraordinary Income/Expenses
3.1 - - - -
(Net)
F. Profit Before Bonus and Taxes 321,634.87 274,772.72 (46,862.15) | (14.57)
3.12 | Provision for Staff Bonus 32,163.49 27,477.27 (4,686.22) |(14.57) | Due to change in profit.
Due to some disallowed & Claimable expenses in tax
3.13 | Provision for Tax 86,841.42 75,588.27 (11,253.14) ((12.96) | computation as well as reduction in service charge
income through supervisiory intruction by NRB
G. Net Profit/Loss 202,629.97 171,707.17 (30,922.79) |(15.26)
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SWAROJGAR LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LIMITED
Statement of Financial Position
As at 32" Ashadh 2079 (16™ July 2022)

Figures in NPR

As at 32" Ashadh

Restated*As at 31%

Restated*As at 1%

Particulars Note 2079 Ashadh 2078 Shrawan 2077
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 4.1 279,773,077 183,801,802 438,671,291
]Sgt;tlllitory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra 4.2 2,950,000 2,950,000 100,000
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions 4.3 - - -
Derivative Financial Instruments 4.4 - - -
Other Trading Assets 4.5 - - -
Loans and advance to MFIs and cooperatives 4.6 - - -
Loans and advances to customers 4.7 7,282,517,801 5,479,903,758 3,199,997,585
Investment securities 4.8 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Current tax assets 4.9 23,018,934 4,214,130 10,894,040
Investment properties 4.10 - - -
Property and Equipment 4.11 42,541,405 37,232,739 31,394,165
Goodwill and Intangible assets 4.12 725,840 944,318 994,970
Deferred Tax Assets 4.13 - - -
Other assets 4.14 51,147,402 12,015,129 11,760,099
Total Assets 7,683,674,459 5,722,061,874 3,694,812,151
Particulars Note | Asat 32" Ashadh | Restated*As at 31% Restated*As at 1%
2079 Ashadh 2078 Shrawan 2077
Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 4.15 3,501,980,792 2,375,121,925 1,407,402,312
Due to Nepal Ratsra Bank 4.16 - - -
Derivative Financial Instrument 4.17 - - -
Deposits from customers 4.18 3,154,844,878 2,574,679,203 1,738,796,077
Borrowings 4.19 - - -
Current Tax Liabilities 4.9 - - -
Provisions 4.20 397,923 - -
Deferred Tax Liabilities 4.12 2,582,240 2,777,367 5,135,385
Other liabilities 4.21 159,385,747 74,762,021 27,633,722
Debt securities issued 4.22 - - -
Subordinated Liabilities 4.23 - - -
Total liabilities 6,819,191,580 5,027,340,516 3,178,967,496
Equity
Share Capital 424 514,099,121 411,279,297 341,612,120
Share Premium - - -
Retained Earnings 122,210,710 109,368,137 48,254,000
Reserves 4.25 228,173,047 174,073,925 125,978,534
Total equity attributable to equity holders 864,482,878 694,721,358 515,844,654
Non-controlling interest
Total Equity 864,482,878 694,721,358 515,844,654
Total Liabilities and Equity 7,683,674,459 5,722,061,874 3,694,812,150
Contingent Liabilities and commitment 4.26
Net Assets Value Per share 168 169 151
The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements. As per our report of even date
Gyanendra Prasad Pande Hom Kanta Chaulagain Ram Babu Silwal Krishna Banjade Tej Datta Khakural
Chairman Director Director Director Director
Date: January 11, 2023 Samz}r Dhakal Hira Devi Bista Mgnoj Krishpa Uprety Niroj Prasad Poudel
’ Director Director Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

Place: Banepa, Kavre
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SWAROJGAR LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Loss
For the year ended 32" Ashadh 2079 (16" July 2022)

Figures in NPR
Particulars Note As at 32" Ashadh 2079 As at 3l}§S;if:;h 2078
Interest income 4.27 1,026,622,829 666,568,487
Interest expense 428 582,564,394 318,678,234
Net interest income 444,058,434 347,890,254
Fees and commission income 4.29 84,857,276 104,843,984
Fees and commission expense 4.30 10,734,037 2,508,064
Net fee and commission income 74,123,240 102,335,919
Net interest and commission income 518,181,674 450,226,173
Net trading income 431 - -
Other operating income 4.32 46,265,781 18,046,185
Total operating income 564,447,455 468,272,358
Impairment charge/(reversal)for loans and other losses| 4.33 (3,379,724) 1,286,752
Net operating income 567,827,179 466,985,606
Operating expense
Personnel expenses 434 209,053,133 164,672,106
Other Operating expenses 4.35 91,570,460 59,520,397
Depreciation and Amortisation 436 7,900,519 7,149,770
Operating Profit 259,303,067 235,643,334
Non operating Income 437 - -
Non operating expense 438 - -
Profit before income tax 259,303,067 235,643,334
Income tax expense 4.39 80,965,441 71,505,138
Current Tax 81,160,567 69,644,584
Deferred Tax expenses/(Income) (195,126) 1,860,553
Profit for the period 178,337,626 164,138,196
Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank 178,337,626 164,138,196
Non-controlling interests -
Profit for the period 178,337,626 164,138,196
Earnings Per Share (EPS)
Basic EPS 34.69 31.93
Diluted EPS 34.69 31.93
The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements. As per our report of even date
‘Gyanendra Prasad Pande ~ Hom Kanta Chaulagain ~ Ram Babu Silwal - Krishna Banjade ~ Tej Datta Khakural
Chairman Director Director Director Director
Date: January 11, 2023 ""é;;;gz_i{ﬁh;ié;i"" ‘Hira DeviBista ~ Manoj Krishna Uprety ~ Niroj Prasad Poudel
irector Director Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

Place: Banepa, Kavre
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SWAROJGAR LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LIMITED

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 32" Ashadh 2079 (16" July 2022)

Figures in NPR

Particulars

Year ended
32" Ashadh 2079

Year ended
31% Ashadh 2078

Profit for the year

178,337,626

164,138,196

Other Comprehensive Income, net of income tax

a) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss

Gains / (Losses) from investment in equity instruments measured at fair
value

Gains / (Losses) on revaluation
Actuarial Gains / (Losses) on defined benefit plans

Income tax relating to above items

Net other Comprehensive Income that will not be reclassified to Profit or
Loss

b) Items that are or may be reclassified to Profit or Loss

Gains (Losses) on cash flow hedge

Exchange gains (Losses) arising from translationg financial assets of
foreign operation

Income tax relating to above items

Reclassify to Profit or Loss

Net other Comprehensive Income that are or may be reclassified to
Profit or Loss

c) Share of other comprehensive income of associate accounted as per
equited method

Other Comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax

Total Comprehensive income for the year

178,337,626

164,138,196

Total Comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity shareholder of the bank

Non controlling interest

178,337,626

164,138,196

Total Comprehensive income for the period

178,337,626

164,138,196

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements.

Gyanendra Prasad Pande Hom Kanta Chaulagain Ram Babu Silwal Krishna Banjade
Chairman Director Director Director
, " SamarDhakal ~ HiraDeviBista  Manoj Krishna Uprety
Date: January 11, 2023 Director Director Chief Executive Officer

Place: Banepa, Kavre

As per our report of even date

Tej Datta Khakural
Director
Niroj Prasad Poudel
Chief Financial Officer
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SWAROJGAR LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LIMITED
Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 32" Ashadh 2079 (16" July 2022)

Figures in NPR

Particulars

Year ended
32"! Ashadh 2079

Year ended
31* Ashadh 2078

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash payment to employees
Other expense paid

(200,871,051)
(87,000,069)

Interest received 1,007,347,276 658,616,286
Fees and other income received 84,857,276 104,843,984
Dividend received - -
Receipts from other operating activities 46,265,781 16,587,904
Interest paid (248,546,072) (203,837,243)
Commission and fees paid (10,734,037) (2,508,064)

(141,158,098)
(59,520,397)

Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions
Other trading assets

Loans and advance to MFIs and cooperatives
Loans and advances to customers

Other assets

(1,782,934,386)
(1,919,045)

Operating cash flows before changes in operating assets and liabilities 591,319,105 373,024,372
(Increase)/Decrease in operating assets
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank - (2,850,000)

(2,278,296,093)
(255,030)

Increase/(Decrease) in operating liabilities
Due to bank and financial institutions

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Deposit from customers

Borrowings

Other liabilities

1,126,858,867

580,165,675

26,497,285

967,719,614

835,883,127

13,036,816

Net cash flow from operating activities before tax paid

539,987,501

(91,737,195)

Income taxes paid

(99,965,372)

(62,964,674)

Net cash flow from operating activities

440,022,129

(154,701,869)

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investment securities

Receipts from sale of investment securities
Purchase of property and equipment

Receipt from the sale of property and equipment
Acquisition of intangible assets

Receipt from the sale of intangible assets
Purchase of investment properties

Receipt from the sale of investment properties
Interest received

Dividend received

(12,990,707)

2,963,857

(9,103,435)

899,459

Net cash used in investing activities

(10,026,850)

(8,203,976)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipt from issue of debt securities

Share issue cost

Repayment of debt securities

Reciepts from issue of subordinated liabilities
Repayment of subordinated liability

Receipts from Merger

Dividends paid

Interest paid

Other recepit/payment

(334,024,004)

22,032,929
(2,386,431)
(111,610,143)

Net cash from financing activities (334,024,004) (91,963,645)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 95,971,275 (254,869,490)
Cash and cash equivalents at begening of the period 183,801,802 438,671,291
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents held
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 279,773,077 183,801,802
The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements. As per our report of even date
Gyanendra Prasad Pande Hom Kanta Chaulagain Ram Babu Silwal Krishna Banjade Tej Datta Khakural
Chairman Director Director Director Director
Samar Dhakal Hira Devi Bista Manoj Krishna Uprety Niroj Prasad Poudel
Date: January 11, 2023 Director Director Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

Place: Banepa, Kavre
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SWAROJGAR LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LIMITED

Statement of Distributable Profit or Loss
For the year ended 32" Ashadh 2079 (16" July 2022)

As per NRB Regulation
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Opening Retained Earning 109,368,137 48,254,000
Net Profit/(loss) as per Statement of Profit or Loss 178,337,626 164,138,196
Appropriation
a. General Reserve (43,784,880) (41,310,292)
b. Foreign Exchange Fluctuation fund
c. Capital redemption reserve
d. Corporate social responsibility fund (166,436) (897,553)
¢. Employees training fund (2,612,901) -
f. Customer Protection Fund (5,842,053) (6,692,407)
g. Other
Profit/(loss) before regulatory adjustment 235,299,492 163,491,945
Regulatory Adjustments:
a. Interest Receivable (-)/previous accrued interest received(+) (10,268,958) (4,936,920)
b. Short loan loss provision in accounts(-)/reversal(+)
c. Short provision for possible losses on investment(-)/reversal(+)
d. Short provision for possible losses on Non-Banking Assets (-)/reversal(+)
e. Deferred Tax Assets recognized(-)/reveral(+)
f. Goodwill recognized (-)/Impairment of Goodwill(+)
g. Bargain purchase gain recognized (-)/reversal(+) (1,458,280)
h. Actuarial Loss recognized (-)/reversal(+)
i. Dividend Adjustment (102,819,824) (47,728,607)
Profit or (Loss) after Regulatory Adjustments 122,210,710 109,368,137
‘Gyanendra Prasad Pande ~ Hom Kanta Chaulagain ~ Ram Babu Silwal Krishna Banjade ~ Tej Datta Khakural
Chairman Director Director Director Director
" SamarDhakal ~ HiraDeviBista ~ Manoj Krishna Uprety ~ Niroj Prasad Poudel -

Date: January 11, 2023

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
Place: Banepa, Kavre

Director Director
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SWAROJGAR LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended on 32" Ashadh 2079 (16™ July 2022)

1. Reporting entity
Swarojgar Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited ("The Microfinance") is domiciled and incorporated in Nepal under Company Act
2063 on Sharwan 08, 2066. The Microfiance got license from Nepal Rastra Bank on Mansir 16, 2066 having 3 district working
area and started it's operation on Poush 01, 2066. Later, on Poush 19, 2074, The Microfinance got license to operate at National
Level from Nepal Rastra Bank. The Microfinace has its registered Central Office at Banepa Municipality 5, Kavre, Nepal. The
Microfinance is operating as a D Class Licensed financial institution as per Bank and Financial Institution Act, 2073. The
Microfiance is a Public Company having its share listed on Nepal Stock Exchange with trading code "SLBBL" after issuing its
share to the general public in FY 2069.070.
During the period The Microfinance has providing its services through 91 total branch offices located in Seven Province by the
end of FY 2078.079. With the aim of providing access to financial services of the poor and marginalized women members,
promoting a culture of saving, encouraging to generate income, supporting micro-enterprises development and providing social
security services to its member the microfiance is serving 130,520 households throughout its 91 branches till the end of this fiscal
year.
Being D Class licensed institution, major activities of the microfiance include deprived sector lending under group guarantee
without collateral in order to enhance economic and social factors of the member. Also, the microfinance provides micro
enterprise loan (Collateral Loan) to its member within the limit as prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank from time to time. The
microfiance also provides different types of skillfull and income generating training to members in time to time basis. The major
sources of fund for the microfiance are saving collection of members along with the lending by various Banks and Financial
Institutions and Equity holder's Fund.

2. Basis of Preparation
2.1 Statement of Compliance
The financial statements also comply the requirements of company Act 2063 and policy, procedures and directives of
Securities Board of Nepal.The financial statements of the Microfinance, have been prepared in accordance with Nepal
Financial Reporting Standard (NFRS) issued by Accounting Standard Board (ASB) of Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Nepal. The financial statements are based on the formats mandated by the Directive No. 4 of The Unified Directives,
2078 as made applicable by the Nepal Rastra Bank.These financial statements for the year ended 32nd Ashadh, 2079 are
the first financial statements of the Microfinance prepared in accordance with NFRS. Reconciliations and description of
the effect of the transition to NFRS from previous GAAP is given in Note 5.11 of this financial statement. Previous
year’s figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to conform with the current year’s classification /
disclosures.
2.1.1 Use of Carve-out
ICAN has provided carve out on specific areas for alternative treatment of the items of financial statements required
as per NFRS. Based on such, The Microfinance has used following carve out for preparation and presentation of
financial statements in line with NFRS.
a) Impairment Loss on Loans and Advances
As per para 63 of NAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, impairment loss is calculated on
incurred loss model. The carve out has allowed to use higher amount of loss calculated as per para 63 or as per
NRB Directives 2/078. Microfinance has used this carve out and presented the impairment loss calculated as per
NRB Directives and disclosed the amount of impairment loss as per NAS 39.
b) Effective Interest Rate
As per the definition of effective interest rate (EIR) as per para 9 of NAS 39, all the initial points paid or received is
required to be considered for calculation of EIR and the same EIR is used to calculate interest on loans and
advances. As per the carve out, if calculation of EIR is impracticable or immaterial, then such could be ignored.
Microfinance has used the carve out and has not considered initial points paid or received on loans to be part of
EIR, rather such amount has been accounted as income on accrual basis.
¢) Interest income on amortized loan after impairment recognition
As per para 63 of NAS 39, Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets have been written down as a
result of an impairment loss, interest income is thereafter recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the
future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The carve out provides that interest income can
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be calculated on gross carrying amount of loan. Microfinance has used the stated carve out in preparing the
financial statements.
2.2 Reporting Period and Approval of Financial Statements
2.2.1 Reporting Period

The reporting period for this financial statements are fiscal year 2076-77, 2077-78 and 2078-79, starting from 1
Shrawan 2076 and ending on 32 Ashad 2079. Financial information of following period/dates are provided on the
financial statements.

1. Comparative NFRS financial statements (financial statements as on and for the periods ended on 31 Ashad 2077
and 31 Ashad 2078 )

2. NFRS financial statements for current period (financial statements as on and for the period ended on 32 Ashad
2079)

2.2.1.1 Approval of Financial Statements
The financial statements are authorised for issue by the Board of Directors in meeting no. 245 on Poush 27, 2079
and recommended for the approval by shareholders in the 14th Annual General Meeting.
2.3 Functional and Presentation Currency
The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupee, which is also the functional currency of Microfinance.
Figures are rounded off to nearest Rupee, accordingly, minor rounding off error may exist.
2.4 Use of Estimates, Assumptions and Judgements
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates and judgments. It also requires management to exercise judgment in the
process of applying the company’s accounting policies. The company makes certain estimates and assumptions
regarding the future events. Estimates and judgments are continuously evaluated based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. In the
future, actual result may differ from these estimates and assumptions. The estimates and assumptions that might result
in adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are on the following
components:
1. Classification of financial assets
Classification of financial assets into Amortized cost or at fair value (either through profit or loss or through other
comprehensive income) depends upon the intention of management whether to hold or trade the assets. At the reporting
dates, the classification been based on the intention of management on particular group of financial assets. The
classification of financial assets may change based on the economic circumstances and intention of management.
2. Fair value of financial assets
Fair value of financial statements are determined on three levels on the basis of available market on reporting date and the
measurement may change depending on available market circumstances.
The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in an active market is the closing price on the reporting dates.
Whenever the instruments are not actively traded in active market, they are determined using other techniques
considering the observable market inputs to the extent possible.
The Microfinance measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy as provided in NFRS 13.
Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Microfinance
can access at the measurement date.
Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly.
Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. Company has used its own data (accounting value) and
considered if there exists factors that would otherwise result in changes to the book value of assets or liabilities.
3. Impairment loss on financial assets
Impairment loss on financial assets is provided on the higher of loan loss provision as per NRB Directive 2078 and para
63 of NAS 39. On calculating loss as per para 63, estimates are made on amount of loans that are considered to require
individual assessment, grouping of loans for collective assessment, parameters for assessing impairment, future cash flow
estimates, historical data on similar types of loan or group of loans.
4. Useful life and salvage value of property and equipment
Management reconsiders the economic useful life and salvage value of property and equipment on each reporting dates
based on the information available on such dates.
5. Impairment loss of non financial assets
Impairment loss is calculated if carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount. For recoverable amount, value in use is
estimated and an estimated discount rate is used to arrive the present value of value in use.
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6. Current Tax and Deferred tax

Significant management judgment is required to arrive at the figure of current tax and deferred tax, based upon the likely
timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. The finance based on its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared.
7. Employee benefit obligations

Judgement is required to determine the estimated liability that shall arise on part of accumulated leave of staff which is
generally paid out on retirement or termination of employment. Valuation of such is done by qualified actuary using
assumption like interest rate, rate of increase in annual compensation, remaining service period etc. Factors considered
may change depending on market changes or legal changes which are beyond the control of the company. Since the
finance is registered under Social Security Fund, actuarial valuation for retirement benefits except leave is not required.
Considering the cost benefit analysis, Microfinance has not done actuarial valuation and carried the liability at book
value.

2.5 Changes in Accounting Policies
There has been no significant change in the accounting policies adopted by the Microfinance except where required due
to adoption of Nepal Financial Reporting Standards.

2.6 New Standards in Issue but not Yet Effective
Standards as pronounced by the Accounting Standards Board Nepal (ASB Nepal) has been used in the preparation of
financial statements. Any departure from the requirements of NFRS, if any, has been separately disclosed in the Notes to
Accounts/ Explanatory Notes.
A number of new standards and amendments to the existing standards and interpretations have been issued by IASB after
the pronouncements of NFRS with varying effective dates. Those become applicable when ASB Nepal incorporates
within NFRS

2.7 New Standards and Interpretation not Adopted
Microfinance has adopted all the applicable standards and interpretation pronounced by ICAN except for the following.
NFRS 9 Financial Instruments NFRS 9 replaces NAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.
NFRS 9 also replaces the existing ‘incurred loss’ impairment approach with an expected credit loss approach, resulting in
earlier recognition of credit losses. The NFRS 9 impairment model has three stages. Entities are required to recognize a
12 month expected loss allowance on initial recognition (stage 1) and a lifetime expected loss allowance when there has
been a significant increase in credit risk (stage 2). The assessment of whether a significant increase in credit risk has
occurred is a key aspect of the NFRS 9 methodology and involves quantitative measures, such as forward looking
probabilities of default, and qualitative factors and therefore requires considerable management judgment. Stage 3
requires objective evidence of impairment, which is similar to the guidance on incurred losses in NAS 39. NFRS 9
requires the use of more forward-looking information including reasonable and supportable forecasts of future economic
conditions. The need to consider multiple economic scenarios and how they could impact the loss allowance is a very
subjective feature of the IFRS 9 impairment model. Loan commitments and financial guarantees not measured at fair
value through profit or loss are also in scope.
These changes may result in a material increase in the Microfinance’s balance sheet provisions for credit losses although
the extent of any increase will depend upon, amongest other things, the composition of the Microfinance’s lending
portfolios and forecast economic conditions at the date of implementation. The requirement to transfer assets between
stages and to incorporate forward looking data into the expected credit loss calculation, including multiple economic
scenarios, is likely to result in impairment charges being more volatile when compared to the current NAS 39 impairment
model.
The NFRS 9 expected credit loss model principally differs from the regulatory model of incurred loss model.
In 2015, the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision published finalized guidance on credit risk and accounting for
expected credit losses. The paper sets out supervisory guidance on how expected credit loss accounting models should
interact with a bank’s credit risk practices. The existing impairment processes, controls and governance will be reviewed
and changed where necessary to reflect the increased demands of an expected credit loss impairment model. These are
yet to be included in the regulatory requirements of Nepal Rastra Bank.
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
IFRS 15 replaces IAS 18 Revenue and IAS 11 Construction Contracts. The new standard introduces the core principle
that revenue must be recognized when the goods or services are transferred to the customer, at the transaction price. Any
bundled goods or services that are distinct must be separately recognized, and any discounts or rebates on the contract
price must generally be allocated to the separate elements. When the consideration varies for any reason, minimum
amounts must be recognized if they are not at significant risk of reversal. Costs incurred to secure contracts with
customers have to be capitalized and amortized over the period when the benefits of the contract are consumed.
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Financial instruments, leases and insurance contracts are out of scope of IFRS 15, and so this standard is not expected to
have a significant impact on the MFL. IFRS 15 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 16 July 2021.

NAS 19 Employee Benefits

The standard establishes the principle that the cost of providing employee benefits should be recognised in the period in
which the benefit is earned by the employee, rather than when it is paid or payable, and outlines how each category of
employee benefits are measured, providing detailed guidance in particular about post-employment benefits.

NAS 19 Employee Benefits is applicable to annual periods beginning on or after 16 July 2020.

However, Employee benefits are provided as per Employee Service Regulation of the Microfinance Co. and on book
value basis. Microfinance believes that the impact of actuarial valuation will not be material and its benefit will not be
more than the cost involved on such expert valuation.

2.8 Discounting
Discounting has been applied whenever the assets and liabilities are of non-current in nature and the impact of
discounting is material.

2.9 Going Concern
The Management has made an assessment on the Microfinance's ability to continue as a going concern and is satisfied
that it has the resources to continue in business for the forseeable future.Furthermore,managment is not aware of any
material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt over the MFI's ability to continue as a going concern. Therfore, the
financial statements continue to be prepared on the going concern basis.

2.10 Standalone Financial Statements

The presented financial statements is the standalone financial statement of Microfinance. The Microfinance does not have
subsidiary, accordingly, preparation of consolidated financial statement is not required.
3.  Significant Accounting Policies
The significant accounting policies adopted by Microfinance while preparing financial statements are as follows:

Note No. Accounting Policy Information Note No.
3.1 Basis of Measurement
32 Basis of Consolidation
33 Cash and Cash Equivalent 4.1
34 Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
3.5 Trading Assets 4.5
3.6 Derivative Assets and Liabilities 4.4
3.7 Property and Equipment 4.11
3.8 Goodwill Intangible assets 4.12
3.9 Investment Property 4.10
3.10 Income tax 4.9
3.11 Deposits, debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities 4.18,4.22,4.23
3.12 Provisions 4.20
3.13 Revenue 4.27,4.29,4.31,4.33,4.37
3.14 Interest expense 4.28
3.15 Employees Benefits 4.23
3.16 Leases
3.17 Foreign currency translation
3.18 Financial guarantee and loan commitment
3.19 Share capital and reserves 4.24,4.25
3.2 Earning per share including diluted
3.21 Segment reporting 5.4
3.22 Events after reporting date

3.1 Basis of Measurement
Financial statements are prepared on historical cost convention except for the following material items:

Particulars

Measurement Basis

Investment in shares and mutual fund schemes

Fair value

Non-banking assets

Lower of Market Value or Outstanding Receivable at the date of booking NBA

Loans to employees

Amortized cost

Property and equipment, investment property
and intangible assets

Deemed cost as fair value
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3.2 Basis of consolidation
Microfinance does not have subsidiary companies, accordingly, consolidation of financial statements is not a requirement.
3.3 Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent comprises of cash, demand deposit and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. In general, short term
investments with original maturity of up to three months are considered as cash equivalent. Cash and cash equivalent are
presented at amortized cost on the financial statements.

3.4 Financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets are any assets that is cash, equity instrument of another entity or any contractual right to receive cash or

financial assets of another entity.

Financial liability is any liability with contractual obligation to deliver cash or other financial assets to another entity.

3.4.1 Recognition

The Microfinance initially recognises financial assets or financial liabilities on the date of which the Finance becomes party to

the contractual arrangement.

3.4.2 Classification and Measurement

Financial Assets: The classification and measurement of financial assets depend on how these are managed i.e. the

Microfinance's business model and their contractual cash-flow characteristics. Based on these factors, financial assets are

classified on following three categories:

i) At Amortized Cost

ii) At Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVPL)

iii) At Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)

i) At amortized cost: Financial assets at amortized cost are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments for which the Microfinance has intent and ability to hold till maturity. They are initially measured at fair value
plus any directly attributable transaction cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, such financial assets are measured at
amortized cost using effective interest rate method less any impairment losses.

ii) At fair value through profit or loss: Financial assets are classified at fair value through profit or loss if the Microfinance
manages such instruments and makes purchases and sales decisions based on its fair value. Attributable transaction costs
and changes in fair value are taken to profit or loss.

iii) At fair value through other comprehensive income: Financial assets at FVOCI are non-derivative financial assets that
are not classified in any of the above category. Financial assets at FVOCI are measured at fair value. Subsequent to initial
recognition, financial assets are measured at fair value, as far as such fair value is available, and changes therein are
recognized in other comprehensive income and presented in the fair value reserve in equity. Microfinance has opted to
classify the investment made in shares and mutual fund schemes as financial assets at FVOCI on initial recognition.
Financial Liabilities: Microfinance classifies its financial liabilities, other than financial guarantee and loan commitments,
as measured at amortised cost or fair value through profit or loss. Financial liability is measured initially at fair value, or an
item not at fair value through profit or loss, at transactions costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

3.4.3 De-recognition

Financial Assets

Financial assets are partially or fully de-recognized in any of the following condition:

- termination of contractual rights to cash flow.

- upon transfer of contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risk and rewards of the ownership

of the financial assets are transferred or in which the Microfinance neither transfer nor retains substantially all of the risk
and rewards of the ownership and it does not retain control of the financial assets.
On derecognition of a financial assets, the difference between the carrying amount of the assets (or the carrying amount
allocated to the portion of the assets derecognised) and the sum of (i) the consideration received (including any new assets
obtained less any new liability assumed) and (ii) any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in OCI is recognised
in statement of profit or loss.

Financial Liabilities

Upon settlement or termination of any liability related to financial liability, financial liability is de-recognized. The difference

between carrying amount and settlement amount is accounted through statement of profit or loss.

3.4.4 Determination of fair value

Fair is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market

participants at the measurement date. Fair value is initially considered based on quoted rate where the assets or liabilities are

principally transaction, in the absence of which the most advantageous market is the active market.
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When available, the Microfinance measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active market for that
instrument. The market is regarded as active if transactions for the assets or liability take place with sufficient frequency and
volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.
If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Microfinance uses valuation techniques that maximise the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique incorporates all of the
factors that market participants would take into account in pricing a transaction.
Fair value of non-financial assets like property & equipment, investment property and intangible assets are considered the
deemed cost of such assets in line with NFRS 1.
Fair Value Hierarchy
Assets and liabilities carried at fair value or for which fair values are disclosed have been classified into three levels according
to the observability of the significant inputs used to determine the fair values.
Level 1: Fair value is determined based on quoted price of financial instruments in active market.
Level 2: Fair value is determined based on quoted price of similar financial instruments within consideration to significant
observable inputs.
Level 3: Fair value is determined used using other method as the inputs for valuation are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability. Microfinance has used its own data (accounting value) and considered if there exists factors that would otherwise
result in changes to the book value of assets or liabilities for this level of valuation.

3.4.5 Impairment
At each reporting date, the Microfinance assesses whether there is objective evidence that financial assets are impaired. The
financial assets or a group of financial assets are impaired when objective evidence demonstrates that a loss event has occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset and that the loss has an impact on the future cash flows of the asset that can be estimated
reliably.
Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired includes:
- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer
- default or delinquency by a borrower
- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Microfinance on terms that the Microfinance would not consider otherwise;
- indication that a borrower or issuer will enter bankruptcy
- the disappearance of an active market for a security; or
- observable data relating to a group of assets such as adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or issuers in the

group or economic conditions that correlate with defaults in the group.

In addition, for an investment in an equity security, a significant or prolonged decline in its net worth below its book value is
objective evidence of impairment.

The Microfinance considers evidences of impairment for loans and advances and investment securities at both specific asset
and at collective level. All individually significant loans and advances and investment securities are assessed for specific
impairment. Those found not to be specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been
incurred but not yet identified. Loans and advances and investment securities that are not individually significant are
collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together loans and advances and investment securities with similar risk
characteristics.

In assessing the collective impairment, the Microfinance uses the statistical modelling of historic trends of the probability of
default, the time of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred and makes an adjustment if the current economic and credit
conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or lesser than is suggested by historic trends. Default rates, loss
rates and expected timing of future recoveries are regularly benchmarked against the actual outcomes to ensure that they
remain appropriate.

Impairment losses on assets measured at amortised cost are calculated as difference between the carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the assets original effective interest rate.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account against loans and receivables or
investment securities. Interest on the impaired assets continues to be recognised through the unwinding of the discount. If an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, then the decrease in
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss (through OCI for such investments measured at fair value through OCI on
which there exists fair value reserve).

The Microfinance writes off a loan or an investment security, either partially or in full and any related allowance for
impairment losses, when the Finance determines that there is no realistic prospect of recovery.

For the purpose of collective assesment of impariment Microfinance has categorized assets into following board products :

- General Loan / Business Loan (Group Basel)
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- Business Growth Loan (Group Basel)

- Micro Enterprises Loan (Collateral)

- Disaster Loan (Group Basel)

- Alternative Energy Loan (Group Basel)

- Center Home Loan (Group Basel)

- Swarojgar Loan (Group Basel)

- Emergency Loan (Group Basel)

- Covid -19 Easy Loan (Group Basel)
Craveout adoption for assessment of impariment charge
The microfinance has opted to apply craveout on impairment of loans and receivables. Accordingly, individual and collective
impairment loss amount calculated as per NFRS is compaired with the impairment provision required under NRB Directives,
higher of the amount derived from these measures is taken as impairment loss for loans and receivables.

Comparision of Impairment as per NFRS and NRB :

Particulars As on 32" Ashadh 2079
LLP as per NRB Directives 118,744,655.96
Impairment as per NFRS 56,345,401.03

3.4.6 Amortized cost measurement
The 'amortised cost' of a financial asset and financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is
measured at initial recognition, minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective
interest method of any difference between initial amount recognised and the maturity amount minus any reduction for
1mpairment.

3.4.7 Effective Interest Method
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability (or group
of financial assets or financial liabilities) and of allocating the interest income or interest expenses over the relevant period.

3.5 Trading assets
Trading assets are those assets that the Microfinance acquires or incurs principally for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term, or holds as part of a portfolio that is managed together for short-term profit or position taking.

3.6 Derivatives assets and derivative liabilities
Derivative assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value on the contract date and are subsequently remeasured to fair
value at each reporting date. The changes in value of instruments are accounted through profit or loss.

3.7 Property and Equipment
Non-financial tangible assets that are held for service providing to customers and for administrative use of the Microfinance are
classified as Property and Equipment.
Recognition
Property and Equipment are recognized in books whenever it is probable that future economic benefits associated with such
assets will flow to the entity and the amount of assets can be reliably measured.
Measurement

At initial recognition, items of property and equipment are measured at cost. Cost includes the purchase price and other directly
attributable costs as well as the estimated present value of any future unavoidable costs of dismantling and removing items. The
corresponding liability is recognized within provisions. Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow in to the Microfinance Ongoing repair and maintenance are expensed
off as incurred.

Subsequent to the initial measurement, there is option to measure the assets either on cost or on revaluation. Finance has
measured all items at cost on subsequent measurement. On transition to NFRS, the Microfinance has elected to continue with the
carrying value of all of its property and equipment measured as per the previous NAS and use that carrying value as the deemed
cost as fair value in line with provisions of NFRS 1.

Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit or
loss when the asset is derecognized.

Assets not capitalized

Items of property and equipment with original cost up to Rs. 2,000 are directly accounted as expenses.

Capital Work in Progress

Assets in the course of construction are capitalized in the assets under capital work in progress (CWIP). At the point when an
asset is operating at management’s intended use, the cost of construction is transferred to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment and depreciation commences.
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Salvage Value

The Microfinance has assessed the salvage value of all property, plant and equipment considering the expected realizable value
on the end of life of such assets.

Depreciation
Depreciation is charged upon the assets is available for use and does not cease until the assets is disposed off, classified as held
for sale or ceases to generate economic benefits.

Freehold land is not depreciated. Depreciation on assets under construction does not commence until they are complete and
available for use. Depreciation is provided on all other items of property and equipment so as to write-off their carrying value
over the expected useful economic lives.

Items of property and equipment are depreciated on Written Down Value Method over their useful life.
Management of the Microfinance has assessed useful life and salvage value of property and equipment, as follows:

Items WDV Rate
Building 5%
Leasehold Properties Lease period
Vehicle 20%
Office Equipment, Furniture & Fixture, 25%
Other Assets 15%
3.8 Goodwill and Intangible assets

Goodwill
Goodwill arises on the acquisition financial institutions when the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration transferred
exceed the amount of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired. If the amount of the identifiable assets and liabilities
acquired is greater, the difference is recognised immediately in the Statement of profit or loss.
Goodwill is allocated to cash generating units (CGU) at the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal management
process. Impairment testing is performed annually, and whenever there is an indication that CGU may be impaired. If the present
value of expected cash inflows is less than carrying amount, impairment loss is recognized and accounted through Statement of
Profit or Loss. Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Acquired Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are recognized whenever the cost of assets can be reliably measured, by the past experience it is demonstrated
Microfinance has control over such assets for the specified period and it is probable that future economic benefits could be
derived from such assets. MFI has followed NAS 38 for accounting of intangible assets.
In the financial statements, software are presented as intangible assets.
Computer Software
Computer software are capitalised on the basis of the purchase cost of software or license and costs incurred to bring it to use.
Cost of internally developed software includes directly attributable costs.
Intangible assets are amortized over the period of its estimated use, or incase of licenses, over the period of contractual right of
use. Whenever there is no specific life or license period, such software are amortized over the period of five years.
At each reporting date, impairment test of intangible assets is done in order to oversee whether the carrying amount exceeds
recoverable amount. Impairment loss is charged to Statement of Profit or Loss.
On transition to NFRS, the Microfinance has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its intangible assets measured as
per the previous NAS and use that carrying value as the deemed cost as fair value in line with provisions of NFRS 1.

3.9 Investment Property
Investment property is land and building held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both but not for sale in
the ordinary course of business, use in the supply of services or for administrative purpose.

3.10 Income tax
Income tax expenses include current tax, deferred tax and any adjustments recognised in the period for current tax of prior
periods.
Current Tax
Current tax is the amount of income tax payable in respect of taxable profit. This is calculated as per the provisions of Income
Tax Act with the effective tax rate for current period. Taxable profit differs from the profit reported in the statement of profit or
loss, because some item of income or expense are taxable or deductible in different years or may never be taxable or deductible.
Income tax rate applicable for Microfinance is 30% (previous year rate was 30%).

Particulars Amounts (NPR.)
Profit as per NFRS (Before Staff Bonus Provision) 288,114,518
Less: Staff Bonus Provision 28,811,452
Profit as per NFRS (After Staff Bonus Provision) 259,303,067
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Add:
Inadmissible Expenses as per Income tax Act, 2058
1 Depreciation as per Accounting System 7,900,519.3
2 Staff Gratuity Provision -
3 Staff Leave Provision 5,628,267.6
4 Provision on Other Assets -
5 Unpaid Bonus Payable -
6 Repair and Maintenance Expenses as per Accounting System 954,222.6
7 Tax Expenses 4,378,253.9
8 Lease Expenses Under NFRS 16 19,722,842
38,584,105.3
Less: -
Admissible Expenses as Per Income Tax Act, 2058 -
1 Depreciation as per Section 19 7,916,232.9
2 Write back of provision on other assets -
4 Leave encashment 954,775.6
5 Dividend Income -
6 Payment from payable bonus of last years -
7 Allowable Lease Expenses as per Lease Aggrement 16,764,707.0
8 Repair and maintenance expenses as per section 16 435,273.0
9 Less Loss Carried Forward 1,280,959.9
Total Taxable Income 270,535,223.4
Income Tax Liability 81,160,567.0
Advance Tax deposited 104,179,501.5
Income Tax Receivable 23,018,934.5
Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is calculated using balance sheet approach on temporary differences between tax base of assets and liabilities and
carrying amount in the financial statements. Deferred tax is calculated using known future tax rate on each reporting date.

Deferred tax is recognized when it is probable that future taxable profit will be available to adjust the impact of temporary
differences. Changes in deferred tax over period is recognized as deferred tax income/expenses in Statement of Profit or Loss.
Income tax on items of OCI
Income tax arising on the items of other comprehensive income is charged to statement of OCI itself.

3.11 Deposits, debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities
Deposits:
Deposits by members is initially recognized at fair value, net of transaction costs for those financial liabilities not at fair value
through profit or loss. The transaction price is considered as the fair value for measuring the deposits.
Debt Securities Issued
Debt Securities are initially measured at the fair value less incremental direct cost and subsequently at their amortized cost
using effective interest method except where the MFI designates the liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. However, the
microfinance does not have debt securites during the reporting period.
Subordinated Liabilties
These are the liabilities subordinated at the event of winding up, to claims of depositors, debt secuirotes issued and other
creditors. It shall include redeemable preference shares, subordinated notes issued, borrowings etc. During the reporting period,
the microfinance did not have any such liabilities.

3.12 Provisions
Provision is a liability with uncertain timing and event. Provision is recognised if as a result of a past event, the group has a
present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at the pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of
the discount is recognised as finance cost.
Contingent Liabilities: Contingent liabilities are i) possible obligations arising from past events whose existence will be
confirmed on happening or not happening or uncertain future events not wholly within the control of Microfinance, or ii) a
present obligation arising from past events but are not recognized because outflow of resources to settle may not be required or
such amount can not be reliably estimated. Contingent liabilities are separately disclosed in financial statements.
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3.13 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the financial institution and the
revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized.

3.13.1 Interest income

Interest Income include interest income on loan and advance, investment securities except on those investment securities
measure at fair value through profit or loss, cash and cash equivalent, due from Nepal Rastra Bank, due from BFIs, loan
and advances to staff etc.Interest income on loans and advances are recognized on amortised principal which is nearer to
the effective interest method suggested by NFRS. The adoption of effective interest method is not possible due to
constraints of time, effort and cost in short term compared to the benefits it provides. Interest of loans and advances which
are significantly impaired are not recognized.Interest income on government bond, treasury bills and bank balances are
recognized under effective interest method.

Further NRB Interest Income Guideline 2019 issued on July 2019 set the criteria for determining when interest income
recognition should be suspended or cease to accrue it as follows:

(a) Loans where there is reasonable doubt about the ultimate collectability of principal or interest;

(b) Loans against which individual impairment as per NAS 39 or life time impairment as per NFRS 9 has been made;

(c) Loans where contractual payments of principal and/or interest are more than 3 months in arrears and where the “net
realizable value” of security is insufficient to cover payment of principal and accrued interest;

(d) Loans where contractual payments of principal and/or interest are more than 12 months in arrears, irrespective of the
net realizable value of collateral;

(e) Overdrafts and other short term facilities which have not been settled after the expiry of the loan and even not renewed
within 3 months of the expiry, and where the net realizable value of security is insufficient to cover payment of
principal and accrued interest;

(f) Overdrafts and other short term facilities which have not been settled after the expiry of the loan and even not renewed
within 12 months of the expiry, irrespective of the net realizable value of collateral;.

Hence ,Accrued Interest on Loans (other than loans whoose contractual payments and or interest are more than 12 month in
arrears) has been recognized.

As on Asadh End 2079 the MFI has ceased accrual of interest amounting to NPR. 24,337,338 related to bad loan which
was NPR. 18,313,562 as on Asadh End 2078.

Microfinance, in general, generates interest income from loan to customers, investment in debt securities and call deposits.

Particulars FY 76-77 FY 77-78 FY 78-79
Interest Suspense (Receivable) 34,586,060 52,896,000 75,219,759
Int suspense outstanding more than 1 year 7,056,365 18,313,562 24,337,388
Remaining Int Suspense (Outstanding less than 1 year 27,529,695 34,582,438 50,882,371
Incremental amount 27,529,695 7,052,743 16,299,933

3.13.2 Fee and commission income

Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual basis when the service has been provided or significant act
performed. the fees and commission income and expense that are integral to the effective interest rate on the financial
assets and financial liability are included in the measurement of the effective interest rate. Microfinance has opted to use
carve-out as mentioned in Note 2.1.1 (c) on this matter and accounted all realized fee and commission income upfront.

Commission on guarantees issued that are for more than one year are immediately accounted as income. If the period of
guarantee is more than one year, then proportionate amount of fee is accounted as income.

3.13.3 Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive dividend is established i.e. dividend is approved by general
meeting of companies.

Dividend income if related to period earlier than the date of acquisition of shares and it amount related to pre and post
acquisition could be segregated, then the pre-acquisition period dividend is adjusted to cost of investment.

3.13.4 Net trading income

Income derived from buying/selling of assets and liabilities classified as for trading purpose are accounted as net trading
income. Gain and loss on trading assets and liabilities are recognized on mark to market basis and not on realization basis.

3.13.5 Other Operating Income

Income other than interest, fees & commission and trading income are accounted as other operating income. This primarily
comprises of changes in foreign exchange rate, dividend income, gain on disposal of non-financial assets etc.

3.14 Interest expense

Interest on deposit accepted from customer and borrowings of the Microfinance are accounted on accrual basis.

=0ell atier Ulcelgat - 209< /0198

14" Annual Report - 2078/079 @



TAROPIR cEfdd fdeier == far

Swarojgar Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.

" € edlgml U, ednl i egelsee”

3.15 Employees Benefits

3.16

317

3.18

Employee expenses includes the amount paid to employees of microfinance in respect of their service. Payment in respect of
services are for the current service and long term benefits. Long term benefits are in the form of defined contribution plan and
defined benefit plan. Expenses under defined contribution plan are accounted as they incur and on defined benefit plan as per
the actuarial valuation.

Employee benefits are accounted using normal calculation method. Actuarial valuation has not been done considering the cost
benefit and materiality impact.

Short term employee benefits include salary, allowance, encashment of unused leave, provident fund, annual bonus based on
profit of the Microfinance, subsidized loans etc. These are provided as the services are rendered by the employees and
measured on undiscounted amount of payment made.

Long term employee benefits include accumulated leave not encashed during service period. These are generally paid on
retirement or termination of service of the employee.

Employee benefits are provided as per Employee Service Regulation of the Microfinance and on book value basis. MFI's
believes that the impact of actuarial valuation will not be material and its benefit will not be more than the cost involved on
such expert valuation.

Leases

In the FY 2078.079, the microfinance has applied NFRS 16 Lease (as issued by the ICAN) that is effeective for annual peiods
that begins on or after 1 Sharwan 2078.

NFRS 16 introduces new or amended requirements with respect to lease accounting. It introduces significants changes to lease
accounting by removing the distinction between operating and financial lease and requiring the recognition of a right-of-use
assets and a lease liability at commencement for all leases, except for short-term leases and lease of low value assets when such
recognition exemptions are adopted. The impact of adoption of NFRS 16 on the financial statements is described below.

The date of initial application of NFRS 16 for the microfiance is 1 sharwan 2078.

The Microfinance has applied NFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach which:

Requires the Microfinance to recognize the effect of initially applying NFRS 16 by considering the date of initial application as
the date of commencement of lease.

Does not permit restatement of comparatives, which continue to be presented under NAS 17 and IFRIC 4.

Under NFRS 16, right-of-use assets are tested for impairment in accordance with NAS 36.

For short-term leases (lease term of 12 month or less) and leases of low-value assets, the microfinance has opted to recognize a
lease expenses on straight-line basis as permitted by NFRS 16. This expenses is presented with in 'Notes 4.35- Other Operating
expenses in the statement of profit or loss.

The Microfinance has used the following practical expedients when applying the modified restrospective approach to lease
previously classified as operating leases applying NAS 17.

The Microfinance has applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of lease with reasonably similar characteristics.

The Microfinance has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities to leases for which the lease term ends
within 12 months of the date of initial application.

The Microfiance has exclued initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use assets at the date of initial
application.

The Microfinance has used hindsight when determining the lease term when the contract contains options to extend or
terminate the lease.

Foreign Currency Transaction

Transaction in foreign currencies are recorded in the functional currency at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of
transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated into the functional
currency at the rate of exchange prevailing on that date. The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items is the difference
between the amortised cost in the functional currency at the beginning of the year, adjusted for effective interest and payment
during the year and the amortised cost in the foreign currency translated at the rate of exchange at the reporting date.

Non monetary assets and liabilities that measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the date on which the fair value is determined. Non monetary items that are measured
based on historical cost in the foreign currency are translated using the rate of exchange on the date of transactions. The
resulting exchange gain or loss differences are generally recognised in Profit or Loss.

Financial guarantee and loan commitment

Financial guarantees are contract that require the Fund to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss that incurs
because a specified debtors fails to make payment when it is due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Loan

commitments' are firm commitments to provide credit under pre-specified terms and conditions.
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Liabilities arising from financial guarantees or commitments to provide a loan at a below -market interest rate are initially
measured at fair value and the initial fair value is amortised over the life of the guarantee or the commitment. The liability is
subsequently carried at the higher of this amortised amount and the present value of any expected payment to settle the liability
when a payment under the contract has become probable. Financial guarantees and commitments to provide a loan at a below
market interest rate included within other liabilities.

3.19 Share Capital and Reserves
3.19.1 Share Capital
Equity share capital is financial instruments issued by the company only to the extent that they do not meet the definition of
financial liabilities.
All the issued shares are paid up and are listed with Nepal Stock Exchange for the purpose of trading by shareholders. All
shares have right to vote on the basis of no. of shares held. Microfinance does not have shares of other kind other than ordinary
shares.
3.19.2 Reserves
Microfinance has created various types of reserves as part of regulatory requirement.
a) General Reserve
General reserve is the statutory reserve. In this reserve, the amount transformed from appropriation of net profit according to
the Banks and Financial Institutions Act, 2073 shall be included. No type of dividend (cash or bonus share) shall be distributed
from the amount in general/statutory reserve. Approval of NRB shall be required in order to use the amount in this reserve.

Movement in General Reserve during this fiscal year:

Particulars Amount (NPR)

Opening Balance of 1st Sharwan 2078 92,870,916

Addition to the Fund this FY

a. Provision of this FY (20% of net profit as per NFRS) 35,667,525

b. 50% of Dividend in excess of 20% Dividend 8,117,355
Total (A) 136,655,797

Less : Expenses from Fund this FY -
Total (B) -

Closing Balance as on Ashad End 2079 (A-B) 136,655,797

b) Exchange Equalization Reserve
Exchange equalization reserve is a statutory reserve. A MFI which has earned foreign exchange revaluation gain on foreign
currency other than Indian currency has to allocate 25 percent of such revaluation gain to this reserve as per provision of
the Bank and Financial Institution Act. Any amount allocated to exchange equalization reserve as per the provision of the
Bank and Financial Institutions Act, shall be presented under this heading.

¢) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Reserve
In line with clause 16 of Directive 16/078, Microfinance is required to allocate 1% of its net profit for the year for CSR and
is required to create CSR Reserve. The amount appropriated to this reserve is expensed off as prescribed in the same
Directive in the next fiscal year.

Movement in CSR Fund this fiscal year:

Particulars Amount (NPR)
Opening Balance of 1st Sharwan 2078 2,113,716
Addition to the Fund this FY

a. Provision of this FY (1% of net profit as per NFRS) 1,783,376.26
Total (A) 3,897,092

Less : Expenses from Fund this FY
a. Expenses for One day Free Health Camp at various branches. 960,097
b. Educational Material Distribution . 628,236
c. Sponsorship for Government base school for organizing sports & cultural program. 5,000
d. Celling Fan distributed to Government base school. 4,800
e. Expenses for Sanitation purpose in different places. 18,807
Total (B) 1,616,940
Closing Balance as on Ashad End 2079 (A-B) 2,280,152

d) Client Protection Fund

Client protection fund is created at 1% of net profit. In addition to this, 25% of dividend in excess is also allocated to this
fund as per NRB Directives.
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Movement in Client Protection Fund this fiscal year:

Particulars Amount (NPR)

Opening Balance of 1st Sharwan 2078 53,413,305
Addition to the Fund this FY

a. Interest Income to the fund 3,527,697

b. Miscellenious Addition 35

c. 1% of Net Profit as per NFRS of the FY 1,783,376

d. 25% of Dividend in excess of 20% 4,058,677

Total (A) 62,783,091

Less : Expenses from Fund this FY
a. Assistance to member during pregnancy for hygiene foods and expenses for

medical cure of member 3,313,705

b. Restoration and Security of failure of Business of Borrower 1,678,375

c. Help for centre home repair 11,005

d. Scholarship Expenses 197,600

e. Assistance on death of Borrower 837,152

f. Training and Observation Expenses of Member 6,066,001
Total Expenses (B) 12,103,838

Closing Balance as on Ashad End 2079 (A-B) 50,679,253

As per the directives 4(1)(Ja)(aa) of NRB issued for microfinance, the microfinance shall earmark and invest seperately the
portion of residual amount of the fund. In compliance with the provision, the management has invested NPR 45,000,000.00
in fixed deposit of various banks and financial institutions and residual amount has been kept in bank account for future
expenditure purpose.

e) Regulatory Reserve
The amount that is allocated from Profit/Retained Earnings of the microfinance to this reserve as per the directives of NRB
for the purpose of implementation of NFRS and which shall not be regarded as free for distribution of dividend shall be
presented under this reserve. The regulatory reserve of the microfinance includes the reserve net of tax and employee bonus
created relating to Accrued Interest Receivable as on Ashadh end 2079 not recovered. Reserve on Deferred Tax Assets,
Non-banking Assets, Reduction in fair value of investment in Equity below cost price, Actuarial Loss etc.
Details of Regulatory reserve has been presented herewith

Particulars FY. 2077.078 FY 2078.079
Interest Receivable - 10,268,957.79
Deferred Tax assets - o

Goodwill - -
Gain on Bargain Purchase - -
Actuarial Loss Recognized - -
Fair Value loss recognized in OCI - -
Others - -

Total - 10,268,957.79

f) Capital Reserve
The capital reserve represents the amount of those reserves which are in nature of capital and which shall not be available
for distribution of cash dividend. The amount from share forfeiture due to non-payment of remaining amount for the unpaid
shares, capital grants received in cash or kind, capital reserve arising out of merger and acquisition etc should be presented
under this heading.

g) Fair Value Reserve
The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of financial assets that are measured at fair
value and the changes in fair value is recognized in other comprehensive income, until the assets are derecognized. The
cumulative amount of changes in fair value of those financial assets shall be presented under this account head.

h) Actuarial Gain Reserve
This reserve is for presenting the OCI component of defined benefit obligations. This is not an actual reserve.

i) Assets Revaluation Reserve
Any reserve created from revaluation of assets (such as Property & Equipment, Intangible Assets, Investment Property)
shall be presented under this heading. Revaluation reserves often serve as a cushion against unexpected losses but may not
be fully available to absorb unexpected losses due to the subsequent deterioration in market values and tax consequences of
revaluation.
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j) Capital Redemption Reserve
This head shall include the statutory reserve created for making payment towards Redeemable Non-Convertible Preference
Shares.
k) Purpose Dividend Distribution
The Board of the microfinance has recommended 22 % Bonus shares and 1.1579 % cash dividend (for tax purpose) for the
FY 2078.079. This porposal is subject to the ratification by the Annual General Meeting of the shareholders. The proposed
distributions shall be recognized in equity in the period in which they are paid.
1) Investment Adjustment Reserve
It is a regulatory reserve created as a cushion for adverse price movements in MFI's investments as directed by the
Directives of Nepal Rastra Bank.
3.19.3 Share Premium
The amount of money collected on issue of shares in excess of its face value shall be presented under this heading. The
outstanding amount in this account shall not be considered eligible for distribution of cash dividend.
3.19.4 Retained Earning
The accumulated profits which has not been distributed to shareholders and has been ploughed back in the licensed
institutions' operations and is free for distribution of dividend to the shareholders shall be presented under this heading.
3.20 Earning per share including diluted
The Microfinance measures earning per share on the basis of the earning attributable to the equity shareholders for the
Period. The number of shares is taken as the weighted average number of shares for the relevant period as required by NAS
33 Earnings per Share. EPS for prior year have been restated because of issue of bonus share during the year as per NAS 33.
3.21 Segment reporting
The Microfinance's operating segments are organized and managed separately through the respective department/business
managers according to the nature of products and services provided with each segment representing a strategic business unit.
These business units are reviewed by Chief Executive Officer of the Microfinance.
The Microfinance has identified seven segments namely: Koshi Province, Madesh Province, Bagmati Province, Gandaki
Province, Lumbini Province, Karnali Province and Far West Province as the seven operating segment and the segment report
is set out in Notes 5.4.
Segment report include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis.
The income, expenses, assets & liabilities that cannot be allocated to aforesaid segment or those related to head office are
unallocated are included in Bagmati. The unallocated items generally comprise of head office assets, head office expenses,
and tax assets and liabilities. The geographical segment has been identified on the basis of the location of the branches in 7
different provinces of the country.
3.22  Events after Reporting Date
These are the events occurring between the reporting date and up to the date of approval of financial statements which are
either adjustable or unadjustable.

Adjustable events are adjusted in the presented financial statements. There are no events that require additional disclosure in
the financial statements.
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SWAROJGAR LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 32" Ashadh 2079

Note No. 4.1
Cash and cash equivalents (Figures in NPR)

Cash and cash equivalent comprise the total amount of cash-in-hand, balances with other bank and financial institutions, money at
call and short notice, treasury bills having original maturity of less than three months and cash in transit is presented as follows:

Particulars As at 32" Ashadh 2079 As at 31° Ashadh 2078 As at 1* Shrawan 2077
Cash in hand 2,621,290 2,993,538 6,187,065
Balance with B/FIs 277,151,787 43,754,806 432,484,226
Money at call and short notice - 137,053,457 -
Other - - -
Total 279,773,077 183,801,802 438,671,291
Note No. 4.2

Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank
Balances held with Nepal Rastra Bank including balance for compulsory cash reserve is presented as follows:

Particulars As at 32" Ashadh 2079 | As at 31°" Ashadh 2078 | As at 1** Shrawan 2077
Statutory Balances with NRB 2,950,000 2,950,000 100,000
Statutory Balances with NRB BFIs = - -
Securities Purchased under re-sale agreement - - -

Other depoist and receivable from NRB - - -
Total 2,950,000 2,950,000 100,000

Note No. 4.3
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions
Placements with domestic as well as foreign bank and financial institutions with original maturities of more than three months
from the acquisition date are presented as follows:

Particulars As at 32" Ashadh 2079 | As at 31 Ashadh 2078 | As at 1°* Shrawan 2077
Placements with domestic B/FIs - - -

Less: Allowances for Impairment - - -
Total - - -

Note No. 4.4
Derivative Financial Instruments
The Microfinance does not have any Derivative Financial Insturments.
Particulars As at 32" Ashadh 2079 As at 31* Ashadh 2078 As at 1* Shrawan 2077
Held for trading - - -
Interest rate swap - - -

Currency swap - - -
Forward exchange contract - - -
Others - - -
Held for risk management
Interest rate swap - - -
Currency swap - - -
Forward exchange contract - - -
Others = - -

Total = - -
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Note No. 4.5
Other Trading Assets

The Micro Finance does not have any trading assets.

Particulars

As at 32" Ashadh 2079

As at 31° Ashadh 2078

As at 1% Shrawan 2077

Treasury Bills
Government Bonds

NRB Bonds

Domestic Corporate Bonds
Equities

Other

Total

Pledged
Non-pledged

Note No. 4.6

Loans and advances to MFIs and Cooperatives
The Micro Finance does not have any Loans and advances to MFIs and Coperatives

Particulars

As at 32" Ashadh 2079

As at 31° Ashadh 2078

As at 1% Shrawan 2077

Loans to microfinance institutions
Loans to FIs

Loans to Cooperatives
Less:Allowance for impairment
Other

Less: Allowance for impairment

Total

Note No. 4.6.1.
Allowance for impairment

Particulars

As at 32" Ashadh 2079

As at 31° Ashadh 2078

As at 1% Shrawan 2077

Balance for 1* Shrawan
Impairment loss for the year
Charge for the year
Recoveries/reversal
Amount written off

Balance at Asar end

Note No. 4.7
Loans and advances to customers

Sum of the outstanding amount of all loans and advances extended to the customers other than BFIs, bills purchased and
discounted and amortized cost of staff loans; less the amount of impairment allowances is presented under this head.

Particulars As at 32" Ashadh 2079 | As at 31 Ashadh 2078 | As at 1% Shrawan 2077
f;(;);ns and advances measured at amortised 7.350,380,086 5.567.445.700 3.289.149.607
AIR On Loans and Advances 50,882,371 34,582,438 27,529,695
Less: Impairment allowances (118,744,656) (122,124,380) (116,681,717)
Collective Allowances (30,383,287) (18,187,733) (72,008,993)
Individual Allowances (88,361,369) (103,936,647) (44,672,724)
Net amount 7,282,517,801 5,479,903,758 3,199,997,585
Loans and advances measured at FVTPL

Total 7,282,517,801 5,479,903,758 3,199,997,585
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Note No. 4.7.1

Analysis of Loans and advacnes- By Product

Particulars

As at 32" Ashadh 2079

As at 31% Ashadh 2078

As at 1% Shrawan 2077

Product

Term Loans

Short term, term loan

Hire purchase loan
Personal Residential Loans
Staff loans

Others

Sub Total

Interest receivable

7,350,380,086

7,350,380,086
50,882,371

5,567,445,700

5,567,445,700
34,582,438

3,289,149,607

3,289,149,607
27,529,695

Grand Total

7,401,262,457

5,602,028,138

3,316,679,302

Note No. 4.7.2

Analysis of Loans and advacnes- By Collateral

Particulars

As at 32" Ashadh 2079

As at 31% Ashadh 2078

As at 1% Shrawan 2077

Secured

Immovable assets

Government Guarantee

Collateral of Government securities
Collateral of fixed deposit receipt
Group Guarantee

Personal Guarantee

Other collateral

Subtotal

Unsecured

1,152,428,539

6,197,951,546

7,350,380,086

1,037,010,762
4,530,434,938

5,567,445,700

822,155,695

2,466,993,912

3,289,149,607

Grand Total

7,350,380,086

5,567,445,700

3,289,149,607

Note No. 4.7.3
Allowances for Impairment

Particulars

As at 32" Ashadh 2079

As at 31% Ashadh 2078

As at 1 Shrawan 2077

Specific allowance for impairment

Balance at Shrawan 1

Impairment loss for the year
Recoveries/reversal during the year
Write-offs

Exchange rate variance on foreign currency
Other Movement

Balance at Asadh end

Collective allowances for impairment

Balance at Shrawan 1

Impairment loss for the year
Recoveries/reversal during the year
Write-offs

Exchange rate variance on foreign currency
Other Movement

Balance at Asadh end

18,187,733
12,195,553

30,383,287

103,936,647

(15,575,277)

88,361,369

72,008,993
(53,821,260)

18,187,733

44,672,724
59,263,922

103,936,647

29,848,148
42,160,845

72,008,993

16,606,859
28,065,866

44,672,724

Total Allowance for impairment

118,744,656

122,124,380

116,681,717
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Note No. 4.8
Investment securities

Investments made by Microfinance in financial instruments has been presented under this account head in three categories i.e.
investment securities designated at fair value through profit or loss, investment securities measured at amortized cost and
investment in equity measured at fair value through other comprehensive income which is as follows:

Particulars As at 32" Ashadh 2079 | As at 31°' Ashadh 2078 | As at 1°' Shrawan 2077
Investment securities measured at _ i i
amortised cost
Investment Securities measured at FVTPL - - -
Investment Securities measured at FVTOCI 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000

Total 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000

Note No. 4.8.1
Investment securities measured at ammortized cost

Particulars As at 32" Ashadh 2079 | As at 31°* Ashadh 2078 As at 1* Shrawan 2077

Debt securities

Government bonds

Government treasury bills

Nepal Rastra Bank bonds

Nepal Rastra Bank deposits instruments
Other

Less: specific allowances for impairment

Total - - -
Note No. 4.8.2
Investment in equity measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

Particulars As at 32" Ashadh 2079 | As at 31 Ashadh 2078 | As at 1** Shrawan 2077

Equity intrument - - -
Quoted equity instrument = - -
Unquoted equity instrument 1,010,000 1,010,000 1,010,000
Less: specific allowances for impairment (10,000) (10,000) (10,000)

Total 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000

Note No. 4.8.3

Infromation relating to investment in equities

Particulars As at 32" Ashadh 2079 As at 31°° Ashadh 2078 As at 1*' Shrawan 2077
Cost Fair value Cost Fair value Cost Fair value
Investment in Unquoted Equity
Nepal Finsoft company Ltd
1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
10,000 shares of Rs. 100 each
Centre for Microfi C
enire for AeTotinance -ompany 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000
100 shares of Rs. 100 each
Total 1,010,000 1,010,000 1,010,000 1,010,000 1,010,000 1,010,000
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Note No. 4.9
Advance tax deposited by the bank less tax liabilities are presented under this head. Liabilities recognized for the purpose of
current income tax, including fees, penalties are presented under this head.

Particulars As at 32" Ashadh 2079 | As at 31°' Ashadh 2078 | As at 1% Shrawan 2077
Current tax assets
Current year income tax assets 104,179,502 73,858,714 37,900,000
Tax assets of prior periods - - -
Total 104,179,502 73,858,714 37,900,000
Current tax Liabilities
Current year income tax liabilities 81,160,567 69,644,584 27,005,960
Tax Liabilities of prior periods - - -
Total 81,160,567 69,644,584 27,005,960

Total 23,018,934 4,214,130 10,894,040

Note No. 4.10

Investment Properties

Land or land and building other than those classified as property and equipment; and non- current assets held for sale under
relevant accounting standard has been presented under this account head. This shall include land, land and building acquired as
non-banking assets by the bank but not sold.

The MFTI has no investment properties.

Particulars As at 32" Ashadh 2079 | As at 31° Ashadh 2078 | As at 1% Shrawan 2077
Investment Properties measured at fair value

Balance as on Shrawan 1 = - -
Addition/Disposal during the year - - -
Net changes in fair value during the year - - -
Adjustment/Transfer = - -
Net Amount
Investment Properties measured at cost
Balance as on Shrawan 1 - - -
Addition/Disposal during the year - - -
Adjustment/Transfer = - -
Accumulated depreciation = - -
Accumulated impairment loss - - -
Net Amount = - -
Total - - -
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Note No. 4.11
Property and Equipment

Particulars

Land

Building

Vehicle

Office Equipment

Other Assets

Total

Cost

Balance as on 1% Shrawan 2077
Addition during the Year
Acquisition

Capitalization

Disposal during the year
Adjustment/Revaluation
Acquisition from Janakpur
Microfinance

15,779,500

4,742,618

30,069

271,000

28,295,042

7,232,116

3,047,479

8,046,858

1,417,500

2,730,370

56,864,018

8,679,685

6,048,850

Balance as on Asar end 2078

15,779,500

5,043,687

38,574,637

12,194,728

71,592,552

Addition during the Year
Acquisition
Capitalization

Disposal during the year
Adjustment/Revaluation

6,954,571

5,838,386

12,792,957

Balance as on Asar end 2079

15,779,500

5,043,687

45,529,208

18,033,114

84,385,510

Depreciation and Impairment
As on Asar end 2077
Acquisition from Janakpur
Microfinance

Impairment for the year
Depreciation charge for the Year
Disposals

Adjustment

3,082,077
65,040

370,641

17,365,154
1,194,676

4,504,770

5,022,622
954,877

1,799,956

25,469,853
2,214,594

6,675,367

As on Asar end 2078

3,517,758

23,064,600

7,777,455

34,359,814

Impairment for the year
Depreciation charge for the Year
Disposals

Adjustment

305,185

5,350,181

1,828,925

7,484,291

As on Asar end 2079

3,822,943

28,414,781

9,606,380

41,844,104

Capital Work in Progress

Net Book Value

As on Asar end 2077

15,779,500

1,660,541

10,929,888

3,024,236

31,394,165

As on Asar end 2078

15,779,500

1,525,929

15,510,037

4,417,273

37,232,739

As on Asar end 2079

15,779,500

1,220,744

17,114,427

8,426,734

42,541,405

Note No. 4.12
Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Particulars

Goodwill

Software

Purchased

Developed

Total

Cost
Balance as on 1* Shrawan 2077
Addition during the Year
Acquisition
Capitalization
Disposal during the year
Adjustment/Revaluation
Balance as on 31* Ashadh 2078

2,392,300

423,750

2,816,050

2,392,300

423,750

2,816,050

Addition during the Year
Acquisition
Capitalization

Disposal during the year

Adjustment/Revaluation

197,750

197,750

Balance as on 32" Ashadh 2079

3,013,800

3,013,800
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. . Software
Particulars Goodwill Purchased Developed Total

Ammortization and Impairment -
Balance as on 1* Shrawan 2077 1,397,330 1,397,330
Ammortization charge for the Year 474,402 474,402
Imapirment for the year -
Disposals -
Adjustment -
Balance as on 31° Ashadh 2078 - 1,871,732.00 1,871,732.00
Ammortization charge for the Year -
Imapirment for the year 416,228.40 416,228
Disposals -
Adjustment -
Balance as on 32" Ashadh 2079 - 2,287,960.40 2,287,960.40
Net Book Value

Net Book Value as on 31* Ashadh 2077 - 994,970 994,970
Net Book Value as on 31° Ashadh 2078 - 944,318 944,318
Net Book Value as on 32" Ashadh 2079 - 725,840 725,840

Note No. 4.13
Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is calculated on temporary differences between the book values of financial assets/liabilities and tax bases of assets/

liabilities using the statutory tax of 30%. Details as follows:

As at
Particulars Deferred Tax | Deferred Tax 31%t Ashadh 2079
Assets Liabilities Net Deferred Tax
Assets/ (Liabilities)
Deferred tax on temporary differences on following items
Investment properties (NBA) - - -
Interest Receivable - 34,582,438 (34,582,438)
Employees' Defined Benefit Plan 21,807,553 - 21,807,553
Provisions ( Bank deposit and advance) 54,005 - 54,005
Property and Equipment 666,748 - 666,748
Lease Liability 37,213,229 40,171,364 (2,958,135)
Other temporary differences - - -
Deferred tax on temporary differences (15,012,267)
Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses 6,404,800 1,921,440
Net Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) as on year end of 2079 (2,582,240)
Deferred tax (asset)/liabilities as on sawan 1, 2078 2,777,367
Origination/(Reversal) during the year 195,126
Deferred tax expenses/(income) recognised in profit or loss (195,126)
Deferred tax expenses/(income) recognised in other comprehensive
income
Deferred tax expenses/(income) recognised in directly in equity -
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Restated*
Deferred Tax | Deferred Tax As at
Assets Liabilities 31% Ashar 2078
Net Deferred Tax
Assets/ (Liabilities)
Deferred tax on temporary differences on following items
Interest Receivable 34,582,438 (34,582,438)
Employees' Defined Benefit Plan 17,134,061 17,134,061
Provisions ( Bank deposit and advance) 54,005 54,005
Property and Equipment 450,723 450,723
Investment properties (NBA) -
Other temporary differences
Deferred tax on temporary differences 17,638,789 34,582,438 (16,943,649)
Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses 7,685,760 2,305,728
Net Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) as on year end of 2078 (2,777,367)
Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities as on Shrawan 1, 2077 5,135,385
DTA From Meger (4,218,572)
Origination/(Reversal) during the year 1,860,553
Deferred tax expenses/(income) recognised in profit or loss 1,860,553
Deferred tax expenses/(income) recognised in other comprehensive
income
Deferred tax expenses/(income) recognised in directly in equity -
Restated* As at
Deferred Tax | Deferred Tax 1%t Shrawan 2077
Assets Liabilities Net Deferred Tax
Assets/ (Liabilities)
Deferred tax on temporary differences on following items
Interest Receivable - 27,529,695 (27,529,695)
Employees' Defined Benefit Plan 10,211,086 - 10,211,086
Provisions (Bank deposit and advance) 54,005 - 54,005
Property and Equipment 146,653 - 146,653
Investment properties (NBA) - - -
Other temporary differences - - -
Deferred tax on temporary differences 10,411,744 27,529,695 (17,117,951)
Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses -
Net Deferred tax assest/(liabilities) as on year end of 2077 (5,135,385)
Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities as on Shrawan 1, 2076 (2,038,708)
Origination/(Reversal) during the year 7,174,093
Deferred tax expenses/(income) recognised in profit or loss 7,174,093
Deferred tax expenses/(income) recognised in other comprehensive }
income
Deferred tax expenses/(income) recognised in directly in equity 7,174,093
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Note No. 4.14
Other Assets

Other Asset include accounts receivable, interest receivable, accrued income, prepayments, deposit, deferred employee benefits

and stationery stock details presented as follows:

Particulars As at 32" Ashadh 2079 | As at 31°' Ashadh 2078 | As at 1*' Shrawan 2077
Assets held for sale o - -
Other Non-Banking Assets = - -
Bills Receivable - - -
Accounts receivable 1,926,812 88,202 -
Prepayments and deposits 532,648 383,571 598,841
Staff Advances 8,467,707 8,430,955 8,765,127
Income tax deposit - - -
Deferred Employee Expenditure - - -
ROU Assets 37,213,229
Other Miscellaneous Assets 3,007,006 3,112,401 2,396,131

Total 51,147,402 12,015,129 11,760,099

Note No. 4.15
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions
Borrowings from other BFI's is shown under this head. Detailed as follows:

Particulars As at 32" Ashadh 2079 | As at 31°' Ashadh 2078 | As at 1°' Shrawan 2077

Borrowing from BFIs
Settlement and clearing accounts
Other

3,501,980,792

2,375,121,925

1,407,402,312

Total

3,501,980,792

2,375,121,925

1,407,402,312

Note No. 4.16
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Particulars

As at 32" Ashadh 2079

As at 31%" Ashadh 2078

As at 1 Shrawan 2077

Refinance from NRB

Standing liquidity facility

Lender of last resort facilty from NRB
Securities sold under repurchase agreement
Other payable to NRB

Total

Note No. 4.17
Derivative financial instruments

Particulars

As at 32"¢ Ashadh 2079

As at 31%" Ashadh 2078

As at 1 Shrawan 2077

Held for trading

Interest rate swap

Currency swap

Forward exchange contract
Others

Held for risk management
Interest rate swap

Currency swap

Forward exchange contract
Others

Total
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Note No. 4.18
Deposits from Customers

All deposits account other than deposit from bank and financial institutions (local and foreign bank and NRB) is presented under

this head. Details are presented as follows:

Particulars

As at 32" Ashadh 2079

As at 31°" Ashadh 2078

As at 1 Shrawan 2077

Institutions Customers:
Term deposits

Call Deposits

Other

Sub total:

Individual Customers:
Term deposits

Saving Deposits

Other

Sub total:

3,154,844,878

3,154,844,878

2,574,679,203

2,574,679,203

1,738,796,077

1,738,796,077

Total

3,154,844,878

2,574,679,203

1,738,796,077

Note No. 4.19
Borrowing

The Microfinance does not have any borrowings as on reporting date.

Particulars

As at 32" Ashadh 2079

As at 31°" Ashadh 2078

As at 1 Shrawan 2077

Domestic Borrowing:

Nepal Government

Other licensed institution

Other

Sub total

Foreign Borrowing:

Foreign Bank and Financial Institutions
Multilateral Development Bank

Other institutions

Sub total

Total

Note No. 4.20
Provisions

Particulars

As at 32" Ashadh 2079

As at 31% Ashadh 2078

As at 1** Shrawan 2077

Provisions for redundancy

Provision for restructuring

Pending legal issues and tax litigation
Onerous contract

Other Provisions

397,923

Total

397,923

Note No. 4.20.1
Movement in provision

Particulars

As at 32°4 Ashadh 2079

As at 31%" Ashadh 2078

As at 1 Shrawan 2077

Balance at shrawan 1st
Provisions made during the year
Provisions used during the year
Provisions reversed during the year
Unwind of discount

397,923

Balance at Ashadh End

397,923
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Note No. 4.21
Other liabilities

Particulars As at 32" Ashadh 2079 | As at 31 Ashadh 2078 | As at 1% Shrawan 2077
ﬁéﬁ‘}’;‘gl{‘s’r employees defined benefit 8,887,433 8,887,433 5,099,716
Liability for long-service leave 12,920,120 8,246,628 5,111,370
Short-term employee benefits 308,698 - -
Employee Provident fund - 735,980 -
Bills payable - - -
Creditors and Accruals 21,119,448 21,588,331 250,875
Interest payable on deposit 38,567 44,248 96,046
Interest payable on borrowing 5,142,121 5,580,752 2,298,107
Liabilities on deferred grant income - - -
Unpaid Dividend - - -
Liabilities under finance lease - - -
Employee bonus payable 29,030,311 25,094,439 9,239,385
Other Miscellaneous liabilities 399,434 4,584,211 5,538,223
Lease Libility Under NFRS 16 40,171,364 - -
Payable to Member for Service Charge Refund 41,368,252 - -

Total 159,385,747 74,762,021 27,633,722

Note No.4.21.1
Defined benefit obligaation

Particulars As at 32" Ashadh 2079 | As at 31° Ashadh 2078 | As at 1° Shrawan 2077

Present value of funded obligations
Total present value of obligations
Fair value of plan assets

Present value of net obligations

Recognised liability for defined benefit
obligation

Note No.4.21.2
Plan Assets

Particulars

As at 32" Ashadh 2079

As at 31° Ashadh 2078

As at 1% Shrawan 2077

Equity securities
Government bonds
Bank deposits
Other

Total

Note No. 4.21.3

Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations

Particulars

As at 32" Ashadh 2079

As at 31° Ashadh 2078

As at 1% Shrawan 2077

Defined benefit obligation at shrawan 1st
Actuarial losses

Benefit paid by the plan

Current service cost and interest

Defined benefit obligation at Ashadh end

Note No. 4.21.4

Movement in the fair value of plan assets

Particulars

As at 32" Ashadh 2079

As at 31° Ashadh 2078

As at 1% Shrawan 2077

Fair value of plan assets at shrawan 1st
Contributions paid into the plan
Benefit paid during the year

Actuarial (losses) gains

Expected return on plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at Ashadh end
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Note No. 4.21.5
Amount recognised in profit or loss

Particulars

As at 32" Ashadh 2079

As at 31%" Ashadh 2078

As at 1 Shrawan 2077

Current service cost
Interest on obligation
Expected return on plan assets

Total

Note No. 4.21.6

Amount recognised in other comprehensive income

Particulars

As at 32" Ashadh 2079

As at 31%" Ashadh 2078

As at 1 Shrawan 2077

Acturial (gain)/loss

Total

Note No. 4.21.7
Actuarial assumptions

Particulars

As at 32" Ashadh 2079

As at 31%" Ashadh 2078

As at 1% Shrawan 2077

Discount rate

Expected return on plan assets
Future salary increase
Withdrawal rate

Total

Note No. 4.22
Debt securities issued

Particulars

As at 32" Ashadh 2079

As at 31° Ashadh 2078

As at 1 Shrawan 2077

Debt securities issued designated at fair value
through profit or loss
Debt securities issued at amortised cost

Total

Note No. 4.23
Subordinated liabilities

Particulars

As at 32" Ashadh 2079

As at 31°" Ashadh 2078

As at 1 Shrawan 2077

Redeemable preference shares

Irredemable cummulative preference shares
(liabilities component)

Other

Total

Note No. 4.24
Share capital

Particulars

As at 32" Ashadh 2079

As at 31* Ashadh 2078

As at 1*' Shrawan 2077

Ordinary shares

Convetible preference share (Equity component)
Irredemable preference share (Equity component)

Perpetual debt (Equity component only)

514,099,121

411,279,297

341,612,120

Total

514,099,121

411,279,297

341,612,120
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Note No. 4.24.1
Ordinary shares
Particulars As at 32"¢ Ashadh 2079 | As at 31° Ashadh 2078 | As at 1% Shrawan 2077
Authorized capital:
Ordinary share of Rs.100 each 800,000,000 500,000,000 4,000,000
Issued capital:
Ordinary share of Rs.100 each 514,099,121 411,279,297 341,612,120
Subscribed and paid of capital:
Ordinary share of Rs.100 each 514,099,121 411,279,297 341,612,120
Total 514,099,121 411,279,297 341,612,120
Note:4.24.2
Ordinary share ownership
. As at 32" Ashadh 2079 As at 31% Ashadh 2078 As at 1* Shrawan 2077
Particulars
Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount
Domestic ownership (promoter) 100.00% 514,099,121 | 100.00% 411,279,297 | 100.00% 341,612,120
Nepal Government
"A" class licensed institutions
Other licensed institutions
Other institutions 0.65% 3,341,644.29 0.65% 2,673,315 0.70% 2,391,285
Other 53.61% | 275,608,538.77 53.61% 220,486,831 50.30% 171,830,896
Domestic ownership (public)
Nepal Government
"A" class licensed institution
Other licensed institutions
Other institutions
Other 45.74% | 235,148,937.95 45.74% 188,119,150 49.00% 167,389,939
Foreign ownership Promoter
Foreign ownership public 0.00% -
Total 100.00% 514,099,121 100.00% 411,279,297 | 100.00% 341,612,120
Note:4.25
Reserves
Following reserves are maintained by the Microfinance.
Particulars As at 32" Ashadh 2079 | As at 31° Ashadh 2078 As at 1°* Shrawan 2077
Statutory General Reserve 136,655,797 92,870,916 51,560,624
Capital reserve - - -
Exchange equalization reserve - - -
Investment adjustment reserve 10,000 10,000 10,000
Corporate social responsibility reserve 2,280,152 2,113,716 1,216,163
Client protection Fund 50,679,253 53,413,305 53,920,960

Capital redemption reserve = - -
Assets revaluation reserve = - -
Regulatory reserve 10,268,958 25,665,987 19,270,787
Fair value reserve = - -
Dividend equalization reserve = - -
Staff Training Fund 2,612,901 - -
Bargain Purchase Gain Reserve = - -
Special reserve = - -
Debenture redemption reserve = - -
Other reserve 25,665,987

Total 228,173,047 174,073,925 125,978,534

. el atee ufclddst - R09¢ /093 4
14" Annual Report - 2078/079




TAROPIR cEfdd fdeier == far
Swarojgar Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.
. " € edlgml U, ednl i egelsee”

Note No. 4.26

Contingent Liabilities and Commitment (Figures in NPR)
Particulars As at 32" Ashadh 2079 | As at 31" Ashadh 2078 As at 1°* Shrawan 2077

Contingent Liabilities - - -

Undrawn and undisbursed facilities - - -

Capital commitment = - -
Lease commitment = - -

Litigation - - -
others = - -

Total - - -
Note No. 4.26.1

Capital commitments
Capital expenditure approved by relevant authority of the Microfinance but provision has not been made in financial statements
Particulars As at 32" Ashadh 2079 | As at 31° Ashadh 2078 As at 1% Shrawan 2077

Capital commitments in relation to
Property and Equipment
Approved and contracted for = - -

Approved but not contracted for = - -
Sub Total = - -
Capital commitments in relation to
Intangible assets
Approved and contracted for = - -
Approved but not contracted for = - -
Sub Total = - -
Total - - -

Note No. 4.26.2
Lease Commitments

Particulars As at 32" Ashadh 2079 | As at 31%t Ashadh 2078 As at 15t Shrawan 2077

Operating lease commitments - - -
Future minimum lease payment under non
cancellable operating lease, where the = - -
Microfinance is lessee
Not later than 1 year - - -
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years - - -
Later than 5 years = - -
Sub Total = - -
Finance lease commitments

Future minimum lease payment under non
cancellable operating lease, where the - - -
Microfinance is lessee
Not later than 1 year = - -
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years - - -
Later than 5 years = - -

Sub Total - _ _
Grand Total - - -

Note No. 4.26.3

Litigation

There are no any cases of the Microfinance.
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(Figures in NPR)

Interest income include interest income on loan and advance, investment securities except on those investment securities measure
at fair value through profit or loss, cash and cash equivalent, due from BFIs, loan and advances to staff etc. Details presented as

follows:
Particulars FOI:. dthe year ended Fors tthe year ended
32" Ashadh 2079 31" Ashadh 2078

Cash and cash equivalents 2,963,857 899,459
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank - -
Placement with Banks and Financial Institutions - -
Loans and Advances to Financial Institutions - -
Loans and advances to customers 1,023,647,209 665,647,902
Investment securities - -
Loans and advances to staff 11,762 21,127
Other - -

Total 1,026,622,829 666,568,487

Note: 4.28
Interest expense

Interest expenses include interest accrued on deposits collected and debt securities issued. Details presented as follows:

Particulars

For the year ended
32" Ashadh 2079

For the year ended
31* Ashadh 2078

Due to Bank and Financial Institutions
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Deposits from customers 248,540,390.44 201,800,620
Borrowing 334,024,004.03 114,892,788
Debt securities issued - -
Subordinated liabilities - -
Other - -
Client Protection Fund - 1,984,825

Total 582,564,394.47 318,678,234

Note: 4.29
Fees and Commission Income

Fees and commission income include management fee, service charges, syndication fee, forex transaction commission etc.

Details presented as follows:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
32" Ashadh 2079 31° Ashadh 2078

Loan Administration fees =
Service fees 78,436,588.00 100,833,302
Commitment fees - -
Card Issuance fees - -
Pepayment and swap fees = -
Remittance fees 142,020 -
Brokerage fees - -
Other Fees and Commission Income 6,278,668 4,010,682

Total 84,857,276 104,843,984
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Note: 4.30
Fees and commission expense

Fees and commission expense include ATM management fees, card related fees, remittance fees & commissions/TT/swift charges

etc.
Details presented as follows:

Particulars

For the year ended
32" Ashadh 2079

For the year ended
31* Ashadh 2078

Brokerage

ATM management fees
VISA/Master card fees

Guarantee commission

Brokerage

DD/TT/Swift fees

Remittance fees and commission
Other Fees and Commission Expense

10,734,036.63

2,508,064

Total

10,734,036.63

2,508,064

Note: 4.31
Net trading income

Particulars

For the year ended
32" Ashadh 2079

For the year ended
31* Ashadh 2078

Changes in fair value of trading assets
Gain/loss on disposal of trading assets
Interest income on trading assets
Dividend income on trading assets
Gain/Loss Foreign Exchange Transaction
Other

Total

Note: 4.32
Other operating income

Particulars

For the year ended
32" Ashadh 2079

For the year ended
31* Ashadh 2078

Foreign Exchange Revaulation Gain
Gain/loss on sale of investment Securities
Fair value gain/loss on investment property
Dividend on equity instruments

Gain/loss on sale of property and equipment
Gain/loss on sale of investment property
Operating lease income

Gain on Bargain Purchase

Other

46,265,780.94

1,458,280
16,587,904

Total

46,265,781

18,046,185

Note: 4.33

Impairment charge/(reversal) for loan and other losses

Detail presented as follows:

Particulars

For the year ended
32" Ashadh 2079

For the year ended
31* Ashadh 2078

Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to B/FIs -

Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to customer
Impairment charge/(reversal) on financial Investment
Impairment charge/(reversal) on placement with bank and financial

institutions

Impairment charge/(reversal) on property and equipment

(3,379,724)

Impairment charge/(reversal) on goodwill and intangible assets -

Impairment charge/(reversal) on investment property

1,286,752

Total

(3,379,724)

1,286,752
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All expenses related to employees of a MFI's are included under this head. Details presented as follows:
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Particulars Forntdhe year ended Forstthe year ended
32" Ashadh 2079 31* Ashadh 2078

Salary 87,667,173 68,247,299
Allowances 70,300,802 60,004,737
Gratuity expenses - 3,084,148
Provident fund - 2,188,933
Social Security Fund 15,281,725 1,696,687
Uniform - -
Training & Development Expense 1,234,660 1,056,922
Leave encashment 5,628,268 3,241,030
Medical - -
Employee Insurance 129,054 204,476
Employees Incentive - -
Cash-settled share-based payments - -
Pension Expense - -
Voluntary Resignation scheme = -
Finance expenses under NFRS = -
Other Expenses Related to Staff - -
Sub-Total 180,241,681 139,724,232
Employees Bonus 28,811,452 24,947,874

Total 209,053,133 164,672,106
Note: 4.35
Other operating expense
Operating expense other than those relating to personnel expense are recognized are presented in this head.
Details presented as follows:

Particulars F01;l dthe year ended F orstthe year ended
32" Ashadh 2079 31% Ashadh 2078

Directors' fee 620,000 706,500
Directors' expense 541,826 85,587
Auditors' remuneration 1,393,000 304,250
Other audit related expense 502,911 429,328
Professional and legal expense = -
Office administration expense 65,180,056 42,371,828
Operating lease expense 547,908 13,514,410
Interest Expenses Under NFRS 16 5,176,006 -
Depreciation on ROU Assets 14,546,835 -
Operating expense of investment properties - -
Corporate Social Responsibility Expense 1,616,940 743,829
Client Protection expense = -
Onerous lease provision - -
Other Miscellaneous Operating Expenses 1,444,977 1,364,665

Total 91,570,460 59,520,397
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Note No. 4.35.1
Office Administation Expenses

Particulars Fm;l dthe year ended Forstthe year ended
32™ Ashadh 2079 31" Ashadh 2078

Light Electicity and Water Expenses 1,860,087 1,559,192
Repair and maintenance - -
Repair and maintenance -Building - -
Repair and maintenance -Vehicles 461,442 203,183
Repair and maintenance-Computer and accessories 285,840 -
Repair and maintenance-Other 206,941 245,358
Office Equipment, and Repair - 373,987
Insurance 569,990 666,732
Postage, telex, telephone, fax 4,624,610 2,785,237
Printing and stationery 3,964,121 3,692,786
News paper, books and journals 29,906 46,641
Advertisement 305,349 217,421
Donation - -
Security expense - -
Deposit and loan guarantee premium 28,552,635 18,068,232
Travelling Allowance and expenses 4,007,720 2,165,533
Entertainment - -
Annual/special general meeting expense - -
Other -Annual Function Expenses -
Other -Office Expenses 20,311,416 12,347,526

Total 65,180,056 42,371,828
Note No. 4.35.2
Other Miscellaneous Operating Expenses

Particulars Fol;l dthe year ended Fors tthe year ended
32" Ashadh 2079 31" Ashadh 2078

AGM Expenses 339,437.00 437,436
Share Issue Expenses 684,995.00 927,229
Entertainment Expneses - -
Lunch Expenses 420,545.00
Government Dues and Taxes =

Total 1,444,977 1,364,665

Note No. 4.36
Depreciation & Amortisation

Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life. Amortization is the systematic
allocation of the depreciable amount of an intangible asset over its useful life. Depreciation and amortization include depreciation

on plant and equipment & amortization of intangible assets.
Details presented as follows:

Particulars Forl'1 dthe year ended Fors tthe year ended
32" Ashadh 2079 31" Ashadh 2078
Depreciation on Property and Equipment 7,484,291 6,675,367
Depreciation on investment property - -
Amortisation of intangible assets 416,228 474,402.48
Total 7,900,519 7,149,770
Note: 4.37
Non operating income
Particulars F0f1 dthe year ended Fors tthe year ended
32™ Ashadh 2079 31" Ashadh 2078
Recovery of loan written off - -
other income - -
Total - -
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Note No. 4.38
Non Operating Expense
The incomes that have no direct relationship with the operation of transactions are presented under this head.
Particulars F 01;l dthe year ended F 01‘s tthe year ended
32" Ashadh 2079 31" Ashadh 2078
Loan Written Off - -
Redundancy provision - -
Expenses of restructuring - -
Other expense - -
Total - -
Note No. 4.39
Income tax expense
Particulars Fm;l dthe year ended Fors tthe year ended
32"" Ashadh 2079 31" Ashadh 2078
Current tax expense
Current year 81,160,567 69,644,584
Adjustment for prior years = -
Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (195,126) 1,860,553
Changes in tax rate - -
Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses - -
Total income tax expense 80,965,441 71,505,138
Note No. 4.39.1
Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit
Particulars For;‘ dthe year ended Fors tthe year ended
32" Ashadh 2079 31" Ashadh 2078
Profit before tax 259,303,067 235,643,334
Tax amount at tax rate of 30% 77,790,920 70,693,000.16
Add: Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax purpose 3,753,935 (664,127.87)
Less: Tax effect on exempt income - -
Add/less: Tax effect on other items (384,288) (384,288)
Total income tax expense 81,160,567 69,644,584
Effective tax rate 31% 30%

5. Disclosure and Additional Information

5.1 Risk Management & Risk Management Famework

Risk is inherent in the Financial Institution's activities but is managed through a process of ongoing identification, measurement
and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. This process of risk management is critical to the Financial Institution's
continuing profitability and each indviduals within the Financial Institution is accountable for the risk exposures relating to his or

her responsbilities. The microfinance is mainly exposed to;

1. Liquidity Risk

2. Interest Rate Risk
3. Credit Risk

4. Operational Risk

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the microfinance's risk management
famework. Risk Management Committee is responsible for overall risk management of the microfinance which includes
managing, assesing, identifying, monitoring and reducing pertinent macro and micro-economics level business risks that could
interfare with microfinanc's objectives and goals and whether the microfinance is in substantial compliance with its internal
operating policies and other applicable regulations and procedures, external, legal, regulatory or contractual requirements on a
continuous basis. Further, Risk management committee ensures integration of all major risks in capital assesment process. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed annually to reflect changes in market conditions, products and services offered.
The microfinance, through its training and management standards and procedures, continuously updates and maintains a
disciplined and constructive control environment, in which all employess are assigned and made to understand their respective

roles and responsibilities.
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5.1.1 Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the microfinance will encounter difficulties in meeting its financial commitments that are settled by
delivering cash or other financial assets. Hence the microfinance may be unabale to meet its payment obligations when they fall
due under both normal and stress circumstanes. To limit this risk , management has arranged diversified funding sources in
addition to its core deposit base, and adopted a policy of continuously managing assets with liquidity in mind and of mointoring
future cash flows and liquidity on a daily basis. The microfinance has developed internal control process and contingency plans
for managing liquidity risk. This incorporates an assessment of expected cash flows and the availability of high-grade collateral
which could be used to secure additional funding if required.

The microfinace maintains a portfolio of highly marketable and diverse assets assumed to be easily liquidated in the event of an
unforeseen interruption of expected cash flow. The microfinance also has committed lines of credit facilities that could be utilized
to meet liquidity needs. Further, the microfinance maintains a statutory deposit with in A Class financial institution equal to
Approx 7.08% of the member deposit and as cash reserve ratio equal to Approx 0.65% of the member's deposit and lending from
different institutions which also mitigate the bar set by Nepal Rastra Bank. In accordance with the microfinance's policy, the
liquidity position is assessed and managed under a variety of scenarios, giving due consideration to stress factors relating to both
the market in general and specific to the financial institution. The most important of these is to maintain the required ration of
liquid assets to liabilities, to meet the regulatory requirement. Liquid assets consist of cash, short-term bank deposits and liquid
debt securities available for immediate sale.

5.1.2 Interest Rate Risk

Interestrate risk is the potential that a change in overall rate will reduce the value of a bond or other fixed-rate investment. The
Microfinance will take the following measures to minimize the risk arising from interest rates:

a. Only assets and liabilities affected by changes in interest rates has been included in the assets and liabilities.

b. When analyzing the differences in the situation where the payment term of assets and liabilities does not match, the amount of
cash balance and non-payment of interest has been included.

c. In order to manage and mimimize the interest rate risk, the microfinance has prepared quartely (Octorber, December, March and
July mid ) details and submitted to the Microfinace supervision Department of Nepal Rastra Bank within fifteen days after the end
of the quarter.

5.1.3 Credit Risk

The risk of potential loss because of counterparty failures to meet its obligations to pay the credit obtained from microfinance as
per agreed terms is known as credit risk. A loan application from which has been used by microfinance, includes all the relevant
data and information required for assessment of borrowers' background, business and experience, financial statement of borrower,
credibility, sector wise analysis etc.

5.1.4 Operational Risk

The risk that arries during day to day operations of the microfinace is called operating risk. In context of microfiance, small but
large munber of transactions has been done, decentralized working methods has been adopted, more focus has been given on area
expansion for geo-graphy versatility, priority has been given to cost reduction, due to lack of integrated information system,
expansion of program in rural areas with lack of infrastructure and lack of appropriate technology to provide service as per needs
of customer, there is always a possibility of operation risk in the program. The microfinance has arrange the necessary staff to
carry out various responsibilities for daily operation. All the employess have to carry out their post responsibilities in the working
process within the policy rules specified by the microfinance. But sometimes due to negligence of the stakeholders and personal
interest attatched with them, the microfinace is at risk when it goes beyond the policy rules. This type of risk is likely to reduce the
profitablity of microfinace and much more increse in reputational risk of microfinance. Since the operational risk is due to internal
factors, this risk can be reduced only if the internal control system is strengthened.

5.1.6 Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Fair value is a market based measurement, not an entity specific measurement. For some assets and liabilities, observable market
transactions or market information might be available. For other assets and liabilities, observable market transaction and market
information might not be available. However, the objective of a fair value measurement in both cases is the same to estimate the
price at which an orderly transaction to sell the assets or to transfer the liability would take place between market participants at
the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price at the measurement date from the perspective of a market
participant that holds the asset or owes the liability).

Fair values are determined according to the following hierarchy:
Level 1:-

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date. Held for trading and available for sale investments have been recorded using Level 1 inputs.

Level 2:-

Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the assets or liability either
directly or indirectly.
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Level 3:-

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for asset and liability.

The following table shows an analysis financial instruments recorded at fair value by level of the fair value hierarchy:

2078-079 2077-078
Particulars
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial Instrument available for sales
Quoted Equities
Unquoted Equities
Centre for Microfinance Pvt Ltd 10,000 10,000
(100 ordinary shares @ NPR.100 Paid up)
Nepal Finsoft Company Ltd
(10,000 Ordinary Shares @NPR.100 Paid up) 1,000,000 1,000,000
Quoted Mutual Funds - -
Total - 1,010,000 - - 1,010,000 -

5.2 Capital Management

The Microfinance's capital management policies and practices support its business strategy and ensure that it is adquately capitilized
to withstand even in severe macroeconomic downturns. The microfinance is a licenced institutions providing financial services
therefore it must comply with capital requirement of Nepal Rastra Bank.

(i) Qualitative disclosures

Nepal Rastra Bank has directed the microfinance to develop own internal policy, procedure and structure to manage all meterial risk
inherent in business for assessing capital adequacy in relation to the risk profiles as well as strategies for maintaining capital levels.
This includes basic requirements of having good governance, efficient process of managing all material risks and an effective
regime for assessing and maintaining adequate capital. The microfinance has BODs approved risk management policies for proper

governance as guided by Nepal Rastra Bank.
(ii) Quantitative disclosures
Capital Structure and Capital Adequacy

* Tire 1 Capital and a breakdown of its components:

Particulars

Amount (NPR.)

Paid up Equity Share Capital

514,099,121

Irredeemable Non-cumulative preferance shares

Shares Premium

Proposed Bonus Equity Shares

Statutory General Reserves

136,655,797

Retained Earnings

122,210,710

Unaudited current year cumulative profit

Special Reserve Fund

Capital Adjustement Reserves

Dividend Equalization Reserves

Capital Redemption Reserve Fund

Deferred Tax Reserve

Bargain purchase gain recognized

Less: Goodwill

Less: Intrangible Assets

Less: Deferred Tax Assets

Less: Investment in equity of licenced financial Institutions

Less: Investment in equity of institutions with financial interests

Less: Investment in equity of institutions in excess of limits

Less: Investments arising out of underwrritings commitments

Less: Purchase of Land & Buildings in excess of limit & utilized

15,779,500

Less: Reciprocal crossholidings

Less: Others Deductions

Total Tire 1 Capital

757,186,128
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e Tire 2 Capital and a breakdown of its components:

Particulars Amount (NPR.)

Cumulative and /or Redeemable Preference Shares -
Subordinated Term Debt -
Hybrid Capital Instrument -
General Loan loss provision 23,626,751
Exchange Equalization Reserve -
Investment Adjustment Reserves 10,000
Assets Revaluation Reserves -
Special Reserve Fund -

Total Tire 2 Capital 23,636,751
* Total Qualifying Capital

Particulars Amount (NPR.)

Core Capital (Tire 1) 757,186,128
Supplementary Capital (Tire 2) 23,636,751

Total Capital Fund 780,822,879

Statement of Risk Weighted Assets (RWA)
At the month end of Ashad, 2079
A. On- Balance Sheet Items

S.N Description Wﬁight Current Period
(%) Amount (NPR.) RWA

1 Cash Balance 0 2,621,290 -
2 Gold (Tradable) 0 - -
3 NRB Balance 0 2,950,000 -
4 Investment to Govt. Bond 0 - -
5 Investment to NRB Bond 0 - -
6 Loan Againts Own FD 0 - -
7 Loan Againts Govt. bond 0 - -
8 Accured Interest on Govt. Bond 0 - -
9 Investment to Youth and Small Enterpreneure Self-employment Fund 0 - -
10 Balance on domesctic banks and financial institutions 20 277,151,787 55,430,357
11 Loan againts other's and financial institution's FD 20 - -
12 Foreign bank balance 20 - -
13 Money at Call 20 - -
14 Loan againts internationally rated bank guarantee 20 - -
15 Investment to internationally rated banks 20 - -
16 Inter-bank Lending 20 - -
17 Investment on shares/debentures/bonds 100 1,000,000 1,000,000
18 Other Investments 100 - -
19 Loans & Advances, bill purchase/discount 100 7,350,380,086 | 7,350,380,086
20 Fixed assets 100 43,267,245 43,267,245
21 Net interest receivables (Total IR-8-Interest Suspense) 100 - -
22 Net Non-Banking Assets 100 - -
23 Others Assets (Except advance payment on tax) 100 51,147,402 51,147,402
24 Real estate / residential housing loans exceeding the limits 100 - -

Total On-Balance-sheet Items (A) 7,728,517,809 | 7,501,225,090
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B. Off- Balance Sheet Items

S.N Description Weight Current Period
(%) Amount (NPR.) RWA
1 Bills Collection 0 - -
2 Forward foreign exchange contract 10 - -
3 L/C with maturity less than six months (Outstanding Value) 20 - -
4 Gurantee againts International rated bank's counter guarantee 20 - -
5 L/C with maturity more than six months (Outstanding value) 50 - -
6 Bid Bond, performance bond and underwriting 50 - -
7 Loan sale with repurchase aggrement 50 - -
8 Advance payment guarantee 100 - -
9 Financial and other guarantee 100 - -
10 | Irrevocable Loan commitment 100 - -
11 | Possible liabilities for income tax 100 - -
12 | All type of possible liabilities including acceptance 100 - -
13 | Rediscounted bills 100 - -
14 | Unpaid portion of partly paid share investment 100 - -
15 | Unpaid guarantee claims 200 - -
16 | Amount to be maintained for operational risk (2% of Total Assets) 100 154,570,356 154,570,356
Total Off-Balance sheet Items (B) 154,570,356 154,570,356
Total Risk Weighted Assets (A + B) 7,655,795,446
C. | Total Capital Fund (Tire 1 Capital + Tire 2 Capital) 780,822,879
D. | Minimum capital fund to be maintained based on Risk Weighted Assets
1 Minimum Capital Fund Required (8% of RWA) 612,463,636
2 Minimum Core Capital Required (4% of RWA) 306,231,818
3 Capital Fund Maintained (in %) 10.20%
4 Core Capital Maintained (in %) 9.89%
Note No. 5.3
Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities
Particulars Fair Value Amortized Fair Value Total
through PL Cost through OCI
Financial Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 279,773,077 279,773,077
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank -
Loans and advances to B/FIs -
Loans and advances to customers 7,282,517,801 7,282,517,801
Investment securities (Govt. &Development Bonds) -
Investment securities (Equity) - 1,000,000 1,000,000
Other Financial assets -
Total financial Assets - 7,562,290,877 1,000,000 7,563,290,877
Financial Liabilities: -
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 3,501,980,792 3,501,980,792
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank -
Deposits from customers 3,154,844,878 3,154,844,878
Other Financial Liabilities -
Debt securities issued - -
Total financial Liabilities 6,656,825,670 6,656,825,670

Note No. 5.4 Operating segment Information
5.4.1 General information

A component of the Microfinance that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur losses, including
revenue and expenses that relate to transactions with any other components of the microfinance, whose operating results are
reviewed regularly by the management to make decisions about resources allocation to each segment and assess its performance,
and for which discrete financial information is available is termed as operating segment.
Based on the nature of the business, transactions, products and services, the management have identified seven reporting segments

of the microfinance for the purpose of financial reporting:
* Madesh Province
» Karnali Province

® Koshi Province
e Lumbini Province
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Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities

A. Revenue

Amount NPR

Total revenues for reportable segments

1,560,320,196.48

Other revenues

Elimination of intersegment revenues

(400,735,049.69)

Entity’s revenues

1,159,585,146.79

B. Profit or Loss

Total profit or loss for reportable segments

274,772,720.82

Other profit or loss

13,341,797.58

Elimination of intersegment profits

Unallocated amounts: Provision for Staff Bonus

(28,811,451.84)

Profit Before income tax 259,303,066.56
C. Assets

Total assets for reportable segments 7,683,674,458.88

Other assets -

Unallocated amounts:

Entity's assets 7,683,674,458.88

D. Liabilities

Total liabilities for reportable segments

6,749,011,876.24

Other Liabilities

70,179,703.84

Unallocated liabilities

Entity's liabilities

6,819,191,580.08

5.4.3 Measurement of operating segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities

The Microfinance has determined segments based on the provinces.

5.4.4 Information about geographical areas

Revenue from following geographical areas:

Areas Amount (NPR)
Koshi Province 41,701,264.51
Madesh Province 471,025,272.75
Bagmati Province 374,411,389.02
Gandaki Province 107,072,627.22
Lumbini Province 125,019,701.23
Karnali Province 3,735,129.42
Far West Province 36,619,762.64

Total 1,159,585,146.79

5.4.5 Information about major customers

The Microfinance does not have any customer, which generate more than 10% of the entity's revenue.

5.5 Share options and share based payment

The microfinance does not extent the share options and share based payments to any of its employee. Thus during the reporting
period the microfinance does not have any the transactions that are to be accouted as per NFRS 2 "Share - Based Payment".

5.6 Contingent liabilities and commitment

Comprehensive disclosure of the contingent liabilities and commitments are made on Note 4.26.
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5.7 Related Party Disclosures

5.7.1. List of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

The Microfinance has carried out transactions in the ordinary course of business on an arm's length basis with parties who are
defined as Related Parties including Key Management Person (KMP) as required by Nepal Accounting Standard 24 “Related
Party Disclosures” the disclosure of related party has been made as under:The following parties have been identified as the related
party transaction as per NAS 24:

S.N. Name Relationship Date of Appointment Date of Retirement

1 Mr. Gyanendra Prasad Pande Charmain 2075.06.20 -

2 Mr. Hom Kanta Chaulagain Director 2075.06.20 -

3 Mr. Ram Babu Silwal Director 2075.06.20 -

4 Mr. Ram Chandra Banjade Director 2074.07.11 2078.07.27
5 Mr. Bhupati Raj Pandey Director 2074.07.11 2078.07.27
6 Mr. Gokul Neaupane Director 2074.07.11 2078.07.27
7 Mr. Krishna Banjade Director 2078.07.27 -

8 Mr. Tej Datta Khakural Director 2078.07.27 -

9 Mr. Samar Dhakal Director 2078.07.27 -

10 | Mrs. Bijaya Basnet Chettri Director 2075.06.06 2079.06.05
11 Mrs. Hira Devi Bista Director 2079.07.22

12 | Mr. Manoj Krishna Uprety Chief Executive Officer 2079.09.04 -

5.7.2. Transactions with and Payments to Directors & Key Managerial Personnel

Board of Directors Allowances and Facilities

S.N. Particulars No. of Meetings Sitting Fees (NPR.)
1 Board Meeting 16 620,000
2 Audit Committee Meeting 5 29,500
3 Risk Management Committee 5 59,000
4 Anti-Money Laundering Committee 4 19,500
5 Staff Benefits and Facilities Committee 1 6,500
6 Others 1 24,500
Total 759,000
Further, the following expenses are made for Board of Directors in current FY.
S.N Particulars Amounts
1 Communication & News Paper 168,000
2 Air & Bus Fare Expenses 80,780
3 Tiffin & Miscellaneous Expenses 147,560
4 Training & Education 163,787
Total 560,127
Chief Executive Officer’s Emoluments and Facilities
S.N. Particulars Amount (NPR.)
1 Short Term Employee Benefits 1,797,007
2 Retirement Benefits -
3 Social Security Fund Benefit 168,000
4 Others -
Total 1,965,007

In addition to above, the Microfinance also provide other facilities like telephone facility of corporate simcard amounting NPR
400 PM. & Travelling Allowance (Per day NPR 650) as per the approved employee facilities of the Microfinance.
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5.8 Merger and Acqusition

In the Fiscal Year 2077/78, the Microfinance has acquired "D" Class financial institution Licensed by NRB, Janakpur Laghubitta
Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. with due approval from Special General Meeting of the Microfinance and from Nepal Rastra Bank and started
the joint transaction from 25th Ashwin, 2077.

For acqusition the Microfinance has issued 2,43,250 number of equity shares at swap ratio of 100:00 (70 share of Swarojgar
Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited for every 100 shares of Janakpur Laghubitaa)

Fair Value of Net assets is NPR 25,783,280.45.As a result ,Bargain gain amount of NPR 1,458,280.45 arising from the acquisition
of Janakpur Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. has been recognized in the statement of Profit or loss.

In the Fiscal Year 2079/80, the Microfinance has signed MOU for Merger with "D" Class financial institution licenced by NRB,
Samata Gharelu Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. dated on 2079/09/18 and applied to NRB for LOI.

5.9 Additional Disclousers of non consolidated entities.
The Microfinance does not have any subsidiaries & accociates. So, additional disclosure is not required.

5.10. Events after reporting date

No events requiring the adjustment as per NAS 10 "Events occurring after Reporting Period" are observed after the reporting
period.

5.11. Transition to NFRS - Reconciliations

The following reconciliations provide the explanations and quantification of the differences arising from the transition from
Previous GAAP to NFRS in accordance with NFRS 1:

1. Reconciliation of Equity
II.  Effect of NFRSs adoption for the statement of financial position
III. Effect of NFRSs adoption for statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

IV. Adjustments to Statement of Cash Flows.

Previous GAAP information has been reclassified/regrouped in accordance with NFRS, wherever necessary, based on the audited
financial statements of the Swarojgar Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited for the year ended 32 Ashad 2077 and 31 Ashad 2078.

5.11.1. Reconciliation of Equity

As at 31.03.2078 (End of

Particulars Exp ]l\tizzt;tory last period presented (?:':rtns(;tlif:.lz)g‘:;
under previous GAAP)
Total equity under Previous GAAP 670,513,651 496,788,883

Adjustments under NFRSs:

Impairment on loan and advances

Fair value & employees benefit accounting of
staff loan

Lease accounting

Revaluation of property & equipment
Recognition of investment property
Amortization of debt securities issued
Deferred tax 1 (10,374,731) (8,258,909)
Defined benefit obligation of employees
Goodwill/Bargain purchase gain

Interest income recognized on cash basis (2,601,446)
Interest income recognized on accrual basis 2 34,582,438 27,529,695
Other

Adjustment for Proposed dividend 3 47,728,607
Share Capital 4 (45,342,177)
Client protection fund

CSR fund

Total Adjustment to equity 24,207,707 19,055,771
Total Equity under NFRSs 694,721,358 515,844,654
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* Explanatory note
1) Defterred Tax Liability arised due to accrual basis of accouting for interest income
2) Due to Accrual Basis of Accounting for interest income
3) As per NFRS Proposed Dividend is non adjusting events..
4) Effect of dividend

5.11.2 Effect of NFRSs adoption for the statement of financial position as on 1 Shrawan 2077

Particulars iy LSO 7 Reconciliation | NFRS Balance
Note reported balance

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 438,671,291 - 438,671,291
Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 100,000 - 100,000
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions - - -
Derivative Financial Instruments - - -
Other Trading Assets - - -
Loans and advance to MFIs and cooperatives - - -
Loans and advances to customers 1 3,172,467,890 27,529,695 3,199,997,585
Investment securities 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
Current tax assets 2 - 10,894,040 10,894,040
Investment properties - - -
Property and Equipment 32,389,136 (994,970) 31,394,165
Goodwill and Intangible assets 994,970 994,970
Deferred Tax Assets - -
Other assets 3 55,385,069 (43,624,970) 11,760,099
Total Assets 3,700,013,385 (5,201,235) 3,094,812,151
Share Capital and Reserves
Share capital 4 386,954,297 45,342,177 341,612,120
Total Reserves 5 109,834,586 (64,397,948) 174,232,534
Total Equity 496,788,883 (19,055,771) 515,844,654
Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 1,407,402,312 - 1,407,402,312
Due to Nepal Ratsra Bank - -
Derivative Financial Instrument - - -
Deposits from customers 1,738,796,077 - 1,738,796,077
Borrowings - -
Current Tax Liabilities - -
Provisions - -
Deferred Tax Liabilities 6 (5,135,385) 5,135,385
Other liabilities 57,026,114 29,392,392 27,633,722
Debt securities issued - -
Subordinated Liabilities - -
Total Equity and Liabilities 3,700,013,385 5,201,235 3,694,812,150
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5.11.3 Effect of NFRSs adoption for the statement of financial position as on 31* Ashadh 2078

Particulars B ) LA Reconciliation | NFRS Balance
Note reported balance

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 183,801,802 - 183,801,802
Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 2,950,000 - 2,950,000
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions - - -
Derivative Financial Instruments - - -
Other Trading Assets - - -
Loans and advance to MFIs and cooperatives - - -
Loans and advances to customers 1 5,445,321,320 34,582,438 5,479,903,758
Investment securities 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
Current tax assets 2 - 4,214,130 4,214,130
Investment properties - - -
Property and Equipment 38,177,057 (944,318) 37,232,739
Goodwill and Intangible assets - 944,318 944,318
Deferred Tax Assets - -
Other assets 3 93,471,207 (81,456,078) 12,015,129
Total Assets 5,764,721,385 (42,659,511) 5,722,061,874
Share Capital and Reserves
Share capital 4 514,099,121 102,819,824 411,279,297
Share Premium -
Total Reserves 5 156,414,530 (127,027,531) | 283,442,061
Total Equity 670,513,651 (24,207,707) 694,721,358
Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 2,375,121,925 - 2,375,121,925
Due to Nepal Ratsra Bank - -
Derivative Financial Instrument - - -
Deposits from customers 2,574,679,203 - 2,574,679,203
Borrowings - -
Current Tax Liabilities - -
Provisions - -
Deferred Tax Liabilities 6 (2,777,367) 2,777,367
Other liabilities 144,406,606 69,644,584 74,762,021
Debt securities issued - -
Subordinated Liabilities - -
Total Equity and Liabilities 5,764,721,385 42,659,511 5,722,061,874

* Explanatory note is required for each line item presented in adjustment on which transition effect has been arisen

Note:

1) Accrued interest on loans booked on accrual basis and present value of staff loan reclassified to loans and advances to

customers.

2) Reclassification of advance payment of tax shown net of provision for tax shown as current tax assets/liabilities.
3) Reclassification of advance tax, staff loan and accrued interest receivable.
4) Share issue expenses directly routed through equity

5) Effect of above treatment

6) Incremental deferred tax liability due to recognition of accrued interest.
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5.11.4. Reconciliation of Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive income for the year
ended 31 Ashadh 2078

Expll\‘;:tzmry rep](::f:(;ol:l:llgnce Rt Bljl:zlife
Interest Income 1 656,893,172 9,675,316 666,568,487
Income Expenses 318,678,234 - 318,678,234
Net Interest Income 338,214,938 9,675,316 347,890,254
Fees and Commission Income 104,843,984 - 104,843,984
Fees and Commission Expenses 2 - 2,508,064 2,508,064
Net Fees and Commission Income 104,843,984 (2,508,064) 102,335,919
Other Operating Income 3 16,609,031 1,437,153 18,046,185
Total Operating Income 459,667,953 8,604,405 468,272,358
Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and other losses 1,286,752 - 1,286,752
Net Operating Income 458,381,202 8,604,405 466,985,606
Operating Expenses 233,850,337 (2,508,064) 231,342,272
Personnel expenses 4 139,724,232 24,947,874 164,672,106
Other operating expenses 5 94,126,105 (34,605,708) 59,520,397
Depreciation & Amortisation 6 7,149,770 7,149,770
Operating Profit 224,530,865 11,112,469 235,643,334
Non operating income - - -
Profit before income tax 224,530,865 11,112,469 235,643,334
Income tax expense
Current Tax Expenses 69,644,584 - 69,644,584
Deferred Tax (Expenses)/Income 7 (255,269) 2,115,822 1,860,553
Profit for the period 155,141,550 11,112,469 164,138,196
Other comprehensive Income: -
Other comprehensive gain /( loss ) for the year , net of ) ) _
tax
Other comprehensive Income not to be reclassified to ) ) )
profit or loss in subsequent periods
i. Re-measurement (losses) / gains on post employment ) ) )
defined benefit plans
ii. Tax relating to itemss that will not be reclassified to ) i )
profit or loss
Total Comprehensive Income for the Period 155,141,550 8,996,647 164,138,196

Note:

1) Deferred Tax effect of all adjustment

2) Accrued Interest Receivable booked on accrual basis which in approximate to Effective Interest Rate

3) Interest on Staff loan charged to finance income and staff cost

4) Investment Provision made in P/L of local GAAP reversed and charged to OCI for investment classified as Fair value through

OCI

5) Gain on Sell of share classified to OCI charged directly to equity

6) Tax effect of Gain on Sell of share classified to OCI charged directly to equity

7) Avoidable Share issue expenses directly charged to equity

8) Tax effect of Avoidable Share issue expenses directly charged to equity
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5.11.5. Effect of NFRSs adoption for statement of cash Flows
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Particulars

Explanatory
Note

Previously
reported balance

Reconciliation

NFRS Balance

Net cash flows from Operating Activities

Net cash flows from investing activities

Net cash flows from Financing Activities

Net Increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash Equivalent
Cash and cash Equivalent at the beginning of the
period

(399,616,010)
(9,103,435)
19,646,498
(389,072,947)

438,771,291

(244,914,141)

(154,701,869)
(8,203,976)
(91,963,645)
(254,869,490)

438,771,291

Cash and cash Equivalent at the end of the period

49,698,344

(244,914,141)

(70,967,688)
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